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Qiu Jiangang
Chairman

On behalf of the Board of Directors of CNNC International Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”), | am pleased
to present the annual results of the Group for the year ended 31st
December, 2009, which represented the first full year following the
reorganisation of the Company in November, 2008.

RESULTS
For the year ended 31st December, 2009, the Group reported turnover of

approximately HK$136,571,000 (2008: HK$209,082,000). Gross profit
was approximately HK$3,643,000 (2008: approximately HK$8,916,000).
Total comprehensive loss attributable to owners of the Company for the
year was approximately HK$39,153,000 (2008: loss of approximately
HK$18,871,000). The 2009 results of the Group comprised mainly results
of the die casting business of the Group’s subsidiary.
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Chairman’s Statement £ /& &5 = (continued &)

URANIUM LEVERAGING BUSINESS

Leveraging the dominant position of China National Nuclear Corporation
(PRIZTEEB QA ) ("CNNC"), our controlling shareholder, in China's
market for nuclear power, the Group was actively developing its uranium
leveraging business and seeking opportunities in high-yielding uranium
investment projects in the international market to support nuclear power
development in China. In 2009, the Group acquired Western Prospector
Group Limited, a company then listed in Canada and whose assets
included exploration licenses relating to approximately 8,000 tons of
uranium reserves in Dornod, Mongolia. Following the completion of the
acquisition, the Company is now in the process of applying for mining
licenses, so that these reserves will start to bring positive contributions to
the Group in the near future.

DIE CASTING BUSINESS

Revenue for the Group's die casting business declined in 2009 owing to
the depression in the U.S. automobile industry, while productivity was
under significant pressure caused by labour shortage. Nevertheless, the
Group continued to explore new customers, develop new products,
increase investments in technology and step up with efforts in cost
control, with a view to achieving breakeven in the near future. The Group
believes that its die casting business is progressing in the right direction
and will remain a source of positive contributions to the Group in the
medium to long term.

PLACING AND SUBSCRIPTION OF SHARES
The issue of 50,000,000 additional ordinary shares in the Company in

July, 2009 was met with enthusiastic response from the market, and
subscription was swiftly completed. With gratitude to the shareholders
for their interest in the Group, we are committed to identifying premium
uranium investment projects in the international market and delivering
sound results to reward our shareholders.

BUSINESS PROSPECTS AND CONCLUSION

In early 2010, the Company commenced the acquisition of 37.2% equity
interests in the Somina uranium mines in Niger, Africa from its parent
company, CNNC Overseas Uranium Holding Limited. The acquisition was
completed on 25th March, 2010, following the execution of an
acquisition agreement on 23rd January, 2010 and approval by our
independent shareholders (other than connected shareholders) on 19th
March, 2010. The Group will continue to develop its uranium business
with focused efforts, striving to increase revenue from the core operations
in order to maximise shareholders’ value.
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Chairman’s Statement == /& & £ (continued )

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board of directors, | would like to express sincere
gratitude to our shareholders, customers and business partners for their
long-standing support. Thanks are also due to our management and staff
for their dedicated efforts and contributions during the past year.

Qiu Jiangang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 19th April, 2010
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Management Discussion & Analysis & 2 & 5 & & 2 17

MARKET OVERVIEW

The development of clean energy is gaining pace in China, with nuclear
power emerging as an important area for development. The Group is
actively expanding its overseas uranium leveraging business to meet the
demand for uranium resources. The directors believe that this is an ideal
timing for investment to stock up uranium resources projects with high
quality, as the market price of uranium, which is expected to soar in
tandem with the increasing construction of nuclear power plants around
the world, currently remains at a low level. For the year ended 31st
December, 2009 (the “Year"”), inventory clear-up was the order of the
day in a die casting market succumbed by the global economic downturn,
as demand fell sharply after new projects had been either shelved or
cancelled altogether. Nevertheless, the difficult situation was slightly
alleviated by tax incentives plans launched by governments around the
world, which had the effect of boosting production.

BUSINESS REVIEW

On 29th June, 2009, the Group acquired 69.5% equity of Western
Prospector Group Ltd. (“Western Prospector”) which was then listed in
Canada. Upon approval of the privatization proposal by the shareholders
of Western Prospector at its special shareholders’ meeting held on 14th
August, 2009, Western Prospector became an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. Western Prospector is principally engaged in
the acquisition, exploration and development of mineral properties. All of
Western Prospector’s mineral property interests, consisting of various
uranium and coal property projects, are located in Mongolia. All of the
relevant licences have been obtained by the indirect wholly-owned
subsidiaries of Western Prospector in Mongolia. The Group will obtain
direct access to exploration facilities and licenses of Western Prospector’s
subsidiaries which allows the Group to share the future growth prospect
in uranium industry. The uranium exploration licenses suspended by the
Mineral Resources Authority of Mongolia in April and July, 2009 were
subsequently re-registered by the relevant authority of Mongolia on 12th
November, 2009 and all uranium exploration activities has resumed as
normal. The Group is in the process of application for mining licenses and
production is expected to commence in the next two to three years.
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Management Discussion & Analysis &

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

For the Year, the operating results of the Group mainly came from the die
casting business. Owing to the lacklustre performance of the overseas
automotive and construction industries, which historically accounted for a
substantial amount of our orders in the die casting business, and the
decline in selling prices which was linked to falling material costs during
the Year, turnover of the Group for the Year dropped approximately
34.7% to approximately HK$136,571,000 (2008: approximately
HK$209,082,000). In the light of the gradual recovery of overseas
automotive industries in the second half of 2009 and continuous
exploration of new customers by the management, the amount of our
orders increased over the first half of the year. The turnover for the
second half of the year accounted for approximately 60.0% of the total
turnover for the Year. It is expected the amount of orders will continue to
increase in 2010. Gross profit margin dropped to approximately 2.7 %
(2008: approximately 4.3%) as costs of sales were driven up by Renminbi
appreciation, higher inflation and shortage of labour, while fixed
production costs such as rents, electricity fees and depreciation remained
at the same level despite of lower turnover. The Group was committed to
production cost control and inventory reduction. During the Year, the die
casting plant was restructured to enhance its work rate and improve cost
efficiency, while automated equipment was developed to reduce reliance
on labour force, and machinery was also upgraded to attain energy
conservation and efficiency enhancement. It is expected that gross profit
margin will grow rapidly following the gradual increase in turnover.

Other income for the Year increased by approximately 191% to
approximately HK$6,709,000 (2008: HK$2,303,000) with the benefit of
the tax refund policy, interest income and exchange gains. Selling and
distribution expenses decreased by approximately 39.6% to
approximately HK$5,396,000 (2008: HK$8,927,000) in line with the
decrease in turnover.

Administrative expenses increased by approximately 74% to
approximately HK$31,393,000 (2008: HK$18,066,000) while other
expenses increased by approximately 124% to approximately
HK$5,645,000 (2008: HK$2,518,000), reflecting as the first full year of
the Group’s operation of the uranium leveraging business in 2009 as well
as the consolidation of the results of Western Prospector from July, 2009.

(continued #8)
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

On 5th November, 2008, the Company issued a three-year convertible
note with a principal amount of HK$106,200,000 and a coupon rate of
2% per annum to CNNC Overseas Uranium Holding Limited, its
controlling shareholder. The interest element in the finance cost for the
Year arising from the convertible note was calculated with reference to
an estimated effective interest rate of 11.58%. While no interests were
payable in respect of the portion of effective interest rate in excess of the
annual coupon rate, the amount in respect of such portion was required
to be charged to the income statement and be reversed and credited to
reserves upon redemption under Hong Kong Accounting Standards. As a
result, the finance cost for the Year increased to approximately
HK$9,573,000 (2008: approximately HK$2,138,000).

As a result of the combined effect of the foregoing, total comprehensive
loss attributable to owners of the Company for the Year of approximately
HK$39,153,000 (2008: loss of approximately HK$18,871,000) was
reported.

PLACING AND SUBSCRIPTION OF SHARES

The Company completed the top-up Placing and Subscription of an
aggregate of 50,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each (representing
approximately 13.2% of the issued share capital of 379,168,308 shares
of the Company before the Placing) at a subscription price of HK$8.78 on
9th July, 2009 and 20th July, 2009, respectively. Gross proceeds from the
Placing amounted to approximately HK$439,000,000; and net proceeds
after expenses amounted to approximately HK$427,000,000. The amount
will be used for the future business development and the general working
capital of the Group.

FUTURE STRATEGIES

Looking ahead, the Group will continue to identify new business and
investment opportunities in uranium projects globally to satisfy the needs
for nuclear energy development in China, while developing its existing
business of metal die-casting. As the production costs are already under
controlled, the result of die-casting business will be improved following
increase in sales orders. In January 2010, the Company commenced the
acquisition of 37.2% equity interests in the Somina uranium mines in
Niger, Africa from its parent, CNNC Overseas Uranium Holding Limited.
The transaction was completed on 25th March, 2010, following the
execution of an acquisition agreement on 23rd January, 2010 and
approval by the shareholders of the Company (other than the connected
shareholders) on 19th March, 2010. The outlook of the uranium business
is very promising as global demand for natural uranium is expected to
increase given the number of new nuclear power reactors being planned
for or under construction. As such, the management expects its new
business initiatives will be benefited from the strong fundamentals
underlying the uranium industry.

(continued #&)
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Management Discussion & Analysis &

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES
As at 31st December, 2009, the Group employed approximately 1,158

(2008: 1,420) full-time employees of whom 25 (2008: 27) were based in
Hong Kong, 1,092 (2008: 1,393) were based in the Group'’s factories in
Dongguan and office in Beijing, the PRC and 41 (2008: Nil) were based in
Mongolia. Total staff cost incurred during the Year amounted to
approximately HK$46,151,000 (2008: HK$59,978,000).

Remuneration policies and packages for the Group’s employees are based
on their performance, working experiences and conditions prevailing in
the industry. Depending on the financial results of the Group and the
performance of individual employees, eligible staff may also be granted
discretionary share options and performance bonuses, in addition to basic
salaries, retirement schemes and medical benefit schemes. To raise work
quality and management abilities of its employees, the Group provides
job rotation, in-house training and external training courses to employees.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31st December, 2009, total bank borrowings amounted to
HK$16,000,000 (At 31st December, 2008: HK$16,000,000) which would
be due within one year. The bank borrowings are denominated in Hong
Kong dollars, and bear interest at rates calculated with reference to Hong
Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR") plus basis.

The Group had a net current assets amounting to approximately
HK$634,970,000 (At 31st December, 2008: approximately
HK$433,855,000) and a current liabilities of approximately
HK$44,417,000 (At 31st December, 2008: approximately
HK$56,564,000) as at 31st December, 2009. Average stock turnover days
decreased to about 66 days as at 31st December, 2009 from about 71
days as at 31st December, 2008. The proportion of long term customers
with longer credit periods increased as the overall turnover decreased.
Debtors’ turnover days increased from about 77 days as at 31st
December, 2008 to about 104 days as at 31st December, 2009. Capital
expenditures on plant, equipment, exploration and evaluation assets,
leasehold improvements and construction in progress totalled
approximately HK$212,576,000 in 2009 (2008: approximately
HK$17,218,000), of which approximately HK$95,000 (2008:
approximately HK$3,015,000) was related to the construction cost of the
new manufacturing plant situated in Shanghai, the PRC. Commitment to
purchase additional property, plant and equipment that had been
contracted for but not provided in the financial statements as at 31st
December, 2009 amounted to approximately HK$17,952,000 (At 31st
December, 2008: approximately HK$18,000,000).
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Management Discussion & Analysis &

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES (continued)

Net cash outflow from operating activities amounted to approximately
HK$12,206,000 (2008: net cash inflow of approximately
HK$14,775,000). The Group's cash on hand and bank balances increased
from approximately HK$400,150,000 as at 31st December, 2008 to
approximately HK$607,626,000 as at 31st December, 2009. The increase
was due to the issue of new shares during the Year.

Total shareholders’ funds increased from approximately HK$469,640,000
as at 31st December, 2008 to approximately HK$857,595,000 as at 31st
December, 2009, mainly due to the issue of new shares during the Year.
As at 31st December, 2009, the gearing ratio, in terms of total debts to
total assets, decreased to approximately 0.14 (At 31st December, 2008:
approximately 0.23).

ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES AND
ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

Save from the acquisition of Western Prospector and the acquisition of
Somina uranium mines project in Niger subsequent to the balance sheet
date mentioned above, there were no material acquisitions and disposals
of subsidiaries and associated companies for the Year.

EXPOSURE TO FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group’s income, expenditure of raw materials, manufacturing,
investment and borrowings are mainly denominated in USD, HKD and
RMB. Fluctuations of the exchange rates of RMB against foreign
currencies could affect the operating costs of the Group. Currencies other
than RMB were relatively stable during the Year, the Group did not
expose to significant foreign exchange risk. The Group currently does not
have a foreign currency hedging policy for hedging significant foreign
currency exposure.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

There has been no significant change in the capital structure of the Group
since 31st December, 2008, apart from the Placing and Subscription of
50,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each mentioned above.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

There was no charge on the Group’s assets during the Year (2008: Nil).
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CNNC International Limited

PRZEERBERRA A
Corporate Governance Report 1% &

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with the code provisions laid down in the
Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) throughout the year
ended 31st December, 2009 (the “Year").

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Members of the Board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) are
collectively responsible for overseeing the business and affairs of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) that aims to enhancing the
Company'’s value for stakeholders. Roles of the Board include reviewing
and guiding corporate strategies and policies; monitoring financial and
operating performance; ensuring the integrity of the Group’s accounting
and financial reporting systems; and setting appropriate policies in
managing risks of the Group.

The Board currently comprises a total of seven members including two
executive directors, two non-executive directors and three independent
non-executive directors (“INEDs"”), whose details are set out on pages 18
to 20. Members of the Board have different professional and industry
experiences and backgrounds so as to bring in valuable contributions and
advices for the development of the Group’s business. More than one-
third of the Board are INEDs and one of the INEDs has appropriate related
financial management expertise as required under the Listing Rules.

Directors have full access to accurate, relevant and timely information of
the Group through management and are able to obtain independent
professional advices on issues whenever deemed necessary by the
directors.

Regular meetings are held by the Board at least 4 times a year to discuss
strategies and business issues, including financial performance of the
Group, and additional meetings will be held when necessary. The
Company has held regular board meetings in accordance with the Listing
Rules and the CG Code and also the Memorandum and Articles of
Association of the Company, formal notice and board meeting
documents are also given in advance to all directors. During the Year, the
Board held 4 regular meetings and 2 additional meetings. Members of
the Board can attend the meetings either in person or through electronic
means of communication. A record of the directors’ attendance at regular
Board meetings is set out on page 17.
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Corporate Governance Report 1% & 8 ¥ &5 (continued #)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are segregated
in order to reinforce their independence and accountability. Their
respective responsibilities are clearly established and set out in writing.
The Chairman leads the Board’s workings and proceedings, while the
Chief Executive Officer is responsible for implementing the Group’s
strategies and policies and for conducting the Group’s businesses.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the INEDs, an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers all of the INEDs are independent.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all the directors, all
the directors confirmed that they have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code and the code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by directors adopted by the Company.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Group. With the assistance of the accounting
department, which is under the supervision of the management of the
Company, the directors ensure that the financial statements of the Group
have been properly prepared in accordance with statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards. The directors also ensure that the
publication of the accounts of the Group is in a timely manner.

A report of the independent auditor on the Group’s accounts is set out in
this annual report.
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Corporate Governance Report 1% & 8 ¥ &5 (continued #)

INTERNAL CONTROL AND INTERNAL AUDIT

The Board acknowledges its responsibility in maintaining sound and
effective internal control system for the Group to safeguard investments
of the shareholders and assets of the Company at all times.

The system of internal controls aims to help achieving the Group's
business objectives, safeguarding assets and maintaining proper
accounting records for provision of reliable financial information.
However, the design of the system is to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement in the financial
statements or loss of assets and to manage rather than eliminate risks of
failure when business objectives are being sought.

Management has conducted regular reviews during the year on the
effectiveness of the internal control system covering all material controls
in area of financial, operational and compliance controls, various
functions for risks management as well as physical and information
system security.

Procedures have been designed for the business objectives, safequard
asset against unauthorized use or disposition, ensure proper maintenance
of books and records for the provision of reliable financial information for
internal use or publication, and to ensure compliance with relevant
legislations and regulations.

Internal Audit Department has conducted an on going independent
review on the effectiveness of the system of internal control and risk
management of the Group and considers it to be adequate and effective.
Reports on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control on difference
areas had been submitted to the Audit Committee. During the Year,
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu was employed to review the internal control
system of the Group. It is noted that there is no significant areas of
concern which may affect the effectiveness of the internal control system.

Throughout the Year, the Board is satisfied that the Group has fully

complied with the code provisions on internal control as set out in C.2.1
of the CG code.
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Corporate Governance Report &

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION
For the Year, the remuneration paid to the Company’s auditor, Messrs

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, is set out as follows:

VN~
1B A EF& % (continued #&)

= EEh BN &
RAFE  BNAARZBEMEE s BER
GEETTZMEEIIMT

Services rendered

Fees paid/payable

Frig AR 75 Eft Eitag
2009 2008
—EEBAE —EENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
HEETFIT BET T
Audit services BT RT 1,350 900
Non-audit services (i.e. Professional Service) IEERARB(RERK) 1,773 180

-!EI 1,080

AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Company’s Audit Committee was first established in December 2002

and its terms of reference are available on the Company’s website.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include reviewing the
Group's financial reporting system, internal control procedures, risk
management, assessing the adequacy of the human resources of the
Group’s accounting and finance department and maintaining good and
independent communications with the management as well as external
auditor of the Company. Its current members include:

Mr. Cheong Ying Chew Henry (Chairman of the Audit Committee)
Mr. Huang Mingang

Mr. Cui Liguo

Mr. Zhang Lei

Three out of four members of the Audit Committee are the INEDs of the
Company. Mr. Cheong has appropriate related financial management
expertise as required under the Listing Rules. None of them is employed
by or otherwise affiliated with former or existing auditor of the Company.

The Audit Committee held 3 meetings during the Year. The minutes of
the Audit Committee meetings were tabled to the Board for noting and
for action by the Board where appropriate. The attendance of each
member is set out on Page 17.

During the Year, the Audit Committee reviewed the Group’s interim and
annual report for the year ended 31st December, 2009 and the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group. The Audit
Committee also reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company's internal control system and made recommendations to the
Board.
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Corporate Governance Report 1% & 78 % & (continued )

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
The Company’s Remuneration Committee was established in September
2005. Its current members include:

Mr. Han Ruiping (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee)
Mr. Huang Mingang

Mr. Cheong Ying Chew Henry

Mr. Cui Liguo

Mr. Zhang Lei

Three out of five members of the remuneration committee are the INEDs
of the Company. The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
are available on the Company’s website.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for the remuneration of directors and reviewing their specific
remuneration package for directors and senior management, including
terms of salary, discretionary bonus scheme, benefits in kind, pension
rights, compensation payments and other long-term incentive schemes by
reference to market conditions, performance of the Group and the
individual and corporate goals and objectives as set by the Board from
time to time.

The Remuneration Committee held 1 meeting during the Year. The
minutes of the Remuneration Committee meeting were tabled to the
Board for noting and for action by the Board where appropriate. The
attendance of each member is set out on Page 17. During the meeting,
the committee members discussed the policy for the remuneration of
executive directors and senior management and assessed the performance
of executives.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The Board and management shall ensure shareholders’ rights and all
shareholders are treated equitably and fairly. Pursuant to the Company’s
bye-laws, any shareholder entitled to receive notice of and to attend and
vote at a general meeting of the Company is entitled to appoint another
person as his proxy to attend and vote instead of him. Shareholders who
hold not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company shall
have the right, by written requisition to the Board, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition.

Chairmen of the various Board committees, or failing the Chairmen, any
member from the respective committees, must attend the annual general
meetings of the Company to address shareholders’ queries. External
auditor shall also be invited to attend the Company’s annual general
meetings and are available to assist the Directors in addressing queries
from shareholders relating to the conduct of the audit and the
preparation and content of their auditor report.
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Corporate Governance Report 1% & 8 ¥ &5 (continued #)

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

The Company sees high quality reporting as an essential element in

REERBRERRBE
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REEBEERERRE -

building successful relationship with the Company’s shareholders. The
information provided will not only comply with the different requirements
in force but to provide additional information to enhancing
communications with shareholders and the investment public. It is part of
a continuous communication that encompasses meetings and
announcements to the market as well as periodic written reports in the
form of preliminary announcement of results and interim and annual

reports.

The Company also maintains a corporate website on which

comprehensive information of the Group is provided.

DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE AT BOARD, AUDIT AND

ARENBERABE
43 -

CRHEAEEEE

EER BREEERFNEST

REMUNERATION COMMITTEES’ MEETINGS S22 B sk
Audit Remuneration
Board Committee Committee
Meetings Meetings Meeting
BEER EXEEE FMESE
ERER iR L
Total number of meetings held EEFERNETZY 4 3 1
during the Year BE
Number of meetings attended: Bigaai /N
Chairman and Non-executive Director TEBEHDTES
Mr. Qiu Jiangang B 32 M) 5 &= 4(100%) N/A N/A
i iE
Chief Executive Officer and Executive THEZEBEHITES
Director
Mr. Han Ruiping Big it 4(100%) N/A 1(100%)
TiEA
Executive Director BITESE
Mr. Xu Hongchao FFALHE ST A& 4(100%) N/A N/A
i NiE
Non-executive Director ERTESE
Mr. Huang Mingang =/ L 4(100%) 2(67%) 1(100%)
Independent Non-executive Directors BIFERITESE
Mr. Cheong Ying Chew Henry ok TR ST 4(100%) 3(100%) 1(100%)
Mr. Cui Liguo BB 5 4(100%) 3(100%) 1(100%)
Mr. Zhang Lei RESLE 4(100%) 3(100%) 1(100%)
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Chairman and Non-executive Director

Mr. Qiu Jiangang, aged 55, currently serves as the deputy general
manager of China National Nuclear Corporation (“CNNC"). Mr. Qiu
joined CNNC in 1982 and had served as the director of the Overall
Planning Department of CNNC and the assistant to the general manager
of CNNC before his current position. Mr. Qiu has been the chairman of
SUFA Technology Industrial Co., Ltd. CNNC ( P #Z gk B RHZ B 28K (5
PR A]) (stock code: 000777), a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange, since December 2005. Mr. Qiu has over 28 years of experience
in the nuclear industry. Mr. Qiu graduated from Shanghai Jiao Tong
University in 1982 with a bachelor degree in nuclear energy engineering.

Executive Directors

Mr. Han Ruiping, aged 47, currently serves as the Chief Executive Officer
of the Company and a director of China Uranium Corporation Limited.
Mr. Han joined CNNC in 1992 and had served as engineer senior
engineer of China National Nuclear Corporation (F Bl#Z T %48/ 7)) (the
predecessor of CNNC) and deputy director of the Nuclear Fuel
Department of CNNC before his current position. Before joining CNNC,
Mr. Han was a trainee researcher of China Institute of Atomic Energy (
Bl JR-FRERIZRFTPT ). Apart from serving CNNC, Mr. Han also served as
the deputy commissioner of the Science and Technology Division of the
Overall Planning Department of Commission of Science, Technology, and
Industry for National Defense of the Peoples’ Republic of China (COSTIND)
during 1998 to 1999 and a researcher of the Overall Planning Department
of COSTIND during 1999 to 2004. Mr. Han has over 21 years of
experience in the nuclear industry. Mr. Han graduated from Wuhan
University in 1986 with a bachelor degree in Science. He also holds a
master degree in management science and engineering from Harbin
Engineering University.
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management = K& S M E 1 B & /) (continued 1)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Xu Hongchao, aged 39, currently serves as the Executive Vice
President of the Company. Mr. Xu joined CNNC in 1993 and had served
as the accountant of the finance department of China National Nuclear
Corporation ( FB#Z% T ¥4/ 5] ) (the predecessor of CNNC), the deputy
director of the Assets Management Division of the Investments Operations
Department of CNNC, the director of the Overall Management Division of
the Policy Research and System Reform Department of CNNC and the
director of the Investment Division of the Assets Management
Department of CNNC. Mr. Xu is a director of Sanmen Nuclear Power Co.,
Ltd. ( =P94%EHBR A 7)) and a director of SUFA Technology Industrial
Co., Ltd. CNNC ( rizgrB RHR B X AR A7) (stock code: 000777),
a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Mr. Xu has about 16
years of experience in the areas of project investment, assets management
and securities investment. Mr. Xu graduated from Hengyang Engineering
School in 1993 with a bachelor degree in industrial management
engineering. He also holds a master degree in business administration
from the Tsinghua University. Mr. Xu is also qualified as a senior
accountant.

Non-executive Director

Mr. Huang Mingang, aged 43, currently serves as the deputy
general manager of China Nuclear Energy Industry Corporation
(FRREFRET 2 7]). Mr. Huang had served as a deputy commissioner,
a senior engineer, a commissioner of the Nuclear Energy Department and
the assistant to the general manager of China Nuclear Energy Industry
Corporation, before his current position. Mr. Huang also served as a
director of a department of China Trade Centre Limited in London during
1999 to 2000. Mr. Huang has about 20 years of experience in the nuclear
industry. Mr. Huang graduated from Xi'an Jiao Tong University in 1989
with a bachelor degree in engineering. He also holds a master degree in
business administration from Tsinghua University. Mr. Huang has
obtained the professional qualifications of senior engineer (post-graduate
level) and senior international business engineer.
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management = K& S M E 1 B & /) (continued 1)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Cheong Ying Chew Henry, aged 62, currently serves as an
Executive Director & Deputy Chairman of Worldsec Limited, a company
listed on the London Stock Exchange. Mr. Cheong also serves as an
independent non-executive director of Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited
(stock code: 0001), Hutchison Telecommunications Hong Kong Holdings
Limited (stock code: 215), New World Department Store China Limited
(stock code: 825), SPG Land (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 337), Cheong
Kong Infrastructure Holdings Limited (stock code: 1038), TOM Group
Limited (stock code: 2383), all being companies listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange. He is also an independent non-executive director
of Excel Technology International Holdings Limited (stock code: 8048), a
company listed on the GEM Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Cheong
has over 30 years of experience in securities industry. He is also a member
of the Securities and Futures Appeals Tribunal, a member of the Advisory
Committee of the Securities and Futures Commission and a member of
the Disciplinary Panel A of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Cheong holds a Bachelor of Science (mathematics)
degree from Chelsea College, University of London and a Master of
Science (Operational Research and Management) degree from Imperial
College, University of London.

Mr. Cui Liguo, aged 40, is currently a partner of Guantao Law Firm, a
law firm in Beijing, PRC. He has been practising law since 1993. Mr. Cui is
also an independent director of UBS SDIC Fund Management Co., Ltd.
(REIHIBESEIEBR 27 ) and Beijing Navinfo Co., Ltd. (1t RO 4 [E
FRIF &5 A BR A &), an independent non-executive director of APT
Satellite Holdings Limited (stock code: 01045), a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, independent director of SDIC Xinji
Energy Co., Ltd ( BIEHTEAEIRAZ D AR A F]) (stock code: 6019189), a
company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange and an independent
director of SUFA Technology Industry Co., Ltd. CNNC ( FAZERRIRHT T %
R BFR A7) ) (stock code: 000777), a company listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange. Mr. Cui graduated from the China University of Political
Science and Law with a bachelor degree in laws in 1991. He also holds a
master degree in laws from the same university

Mr. Zhang Lei, aged 40, currently serves as a deputy general manager of
Beijing Fuchengmen sales department of Great Wall Securities Co., Ltd.
(B FBEHEREMTAT]), a company Mr. Zhang joined since 1994. Mr.
Zhang has over 16 years of experience in the securities industry. Mr.
Zhang graduated from Renmin University of China in 1996, major in
commercial and economic management. Mr. Zhang holds the
qualification of settlement practitioner granted by Beijing Stock Exchange.
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management = K& S M E 1 B & /) (continued 1)

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Zhao Xiaoming, aged 36, currently serves as Vice President of the
Company. Mr. Zhao joined CNNC in 1997 and was appointed as general
manager of CNNC overseas Uranium Holding Limited in November 2007.
In 2008, Mr. Zhao was appointed as chief accountant of China Uranium
Corporation Limited. Mr. Zhao graduated from Renmin University of
China in 1997.

Mr. Tsang Chiu Wai, aged 59, is the Chief Operating Officer of the
DieCasting Division of the Group. Mr. Tsang started to work in the metal
working industry in Hong Kong in 1981. Mr. Tsang was a co-founder of
the Group and joined the Group in 1993. He was an executive director
and chairman of the Group. He resigned as an executive director and
chairman of the Group in December 2008, but remains to serve in the Die
Casting Division of the Group. He is responsible for the strategic planning
and development of the Die Casting Division of the Group. Mr. Tsang
graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Science
Degree in 1974. After completion of his Master of Business
Administration Degree in the University of Windsor, Canada, in 1977, Mr.
Tsang joined an international oil company in Hong Kong and gained
valuable experience in corporate planning and finance. Mr. Tsang is a
member of the North American Die Casting Association.

Mr. Kong Cheuk Luen, Trevor, aged 54, is the President of the Die
Casting Division of the Group. Mr. Kong joined the Group in 2002 and
was an executive director and chief executive officer of the Group. He
resigned as an executive director and chief executive officer of the Group
in December 2008, but remains to serve in the Die Casting Division of the
Group. He is responsible for the overall management of the financial
operation and business development functions of the Die Casting Division
of the Group. Mr. Kong graduated from University of Saskatchewan,
Canada in 1980 with a Bachelor of Commerce Degree. Before joining the
Group, Mr. Kong was the General Manager of InfoChain Express division,
an information technology business unit at Avery Dennison Corporation,
a Fortune 500 US based company, and has over twenty-one years of
manufacturing management experience. During his past years of
experience, he had successfully deployed several key projects such as
computerization of production system, certification of ISO 9001qualify
system, construction of new 150,000 square feet plant facility and
restructuring of a world class manufacturing team. Mr. Kong is a member
of the North American Die Casting Association.
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management £ E & &S M E IR E BN ontinued )

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)
Mr. Li Philip Sau Yan, aged 51, is the Company Secretary and Financial

Controller of the Company. Prior to joining the Company in November
2008, he had over 27 years of experience in auditing, accounting and
financial management. Mr. Li is an associate member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and a fellow member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Li is a
graduate of Imperial College of the University of London and holds a
Bachelor of Science degree.
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Directors’ Report EER/mEE

The directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31st December, 2009 (the
“Year").

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements.

During the Year, the Group acquired equity interests in Western
Prospector Group Ltd. (“Western Prospector”) which is engaged in the
exploration of mineral properties business.

RESULTS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31st December, 2009 are set

out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page 31.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the Year.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the Year, the Group acquired plant and machinery and other
equipment for the exploration of mineral properties business through the
acquisition of Western Prospector. Details of this and other movements in
the property, plant and equipment of the Group during the Year are set
out in note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
During the Year, the Company issued 50,000,000 ordinary shares of

HK$0.01 each for cash at a price of HK$8.78 per share. These new shares
rank pari passu with the existing shares in all respects. Details of this and
other movements in the share capital of the Company during the Year
are set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE OF THE COMPANY

As at 31st December, 2009, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution amounted to approximately HK$812,257,000 (2008:
HK$394,800,000).
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Directors’ Report & £ B & Z (continued )

DIRECTORS

The following directors of the Company were appointed on 5th
November, 2008, and their appointments were effective on
12th November, 2008:

Chairman and Non-executive Director
Mr. Qiu Jiangang

Executive Directors
Mr. Han Ruiping
Mr. Xu Hongchao

Non-executive Director
Mr. Huang Mingang

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Cheong Ying Chew Henry

Mr. Cui Liguo

Mr. Zhang Lei

In accordance with Article 112 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mr. Xu Hongchao, Mr. Huang Mingang and Mr. Cheong Ying Chew
Henry will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

Each of the current executive directors and independent non-executive
directors had entered into a service contract with the Company for an
initial term of three years commencing 5th November, 2008 which shall
continue thereafter until terminated by either party giving to the other
party not less than three months prior written notice.

The term of office of each of the non-executive directors is the period

from his appointment to the time of retirement by rotation in accordance
with the Company’s Articles of Association.
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Directors’ Report % % E‘ #& tl:lt % (continued #&)

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS

None of the directors has a service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

At 31st December, 2009, none of the directors nor their associates had
any shares or underlying shares of the Company and its associated
corporations, as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFQ"), or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies.

SHARE OPTIONS

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) are set
out in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements. No share option
has been granted under the Scheme since its adoption.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR

DEBENTURES
Other than as disclosed under the section headed “SHARE OPTIONS”

above, at no time during the Year was the Company or any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.
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Directors’ Report EE B E Z (continued #)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS FERE
At 31st December, 2009, the register of substantial shareholders RZ-ZTTHAhE+_A=+—H8B KRBARQ

maintained by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO shows TR BEZES LKA EKEFFIR6EREFTE L

that the following shareholders had notified the Company of relevant FEREZZMAHE R A TRESHME

interests and short positions in the issued share capital of the Company. AARKEHEAEARL D BITIRA Z HHE
e RKAE

Long positions 3e
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company AL EFAR E & #0.01T.2 BB

Number of  Percentage of the
issued ordinary issued share capital

Name of shareholder Capacity shares held of the Company

i E31T HEATEET
B R i & L LiEREE BRAEBSEE
CNNC Overseas Uranium Holding Limited Corporate interest 266,372,273 62.07%

("CNNC Overseas”) (note i)

RRZENHEERBER AR ((REEIND(MT) QAR

China Uranium Corporation Limited (formerly known  Corporate interest 266,372,273 62.07%
as "China Nuclear International Uranium
Corporation”) (“CUC") (note i)

PEEZENIEERAB (AIBIPBEEZEIN QAER
& RFE QA (TE 2 ah 1) (B 55D

K

el

China National Nuclear Corporation (“CNNC") (note i) Corporate interest 266,372,273 62.07%

hEZTEEERT ([FzEE]DE D NCIE:-

Shine Top Limited (note ii) Corporate interest 14,219,622 3.31%

Shine Top Limited (F Eii ) NGIE: £

China Top Limited (note ii) Corporate interest 14,219,622 3.31%

China Top Limited (Bff 5ii ) NESE

Mr. Thomas Lau, Luen-hung (note ii) Personal and corporate 24,994,622 5.82%

interest

218005 5 A& (B[ i) (EPNYSENGCIE: £

Notes: Lk

(i) CNNC Overseas is the immediate holding company of the Company, which is wholly owned (i) TRBNABANAEEERER  EABRZMm2EMNE
by CUC, whereas CUC is wholly owned by CNNC. AR BZMATRERENBAR -

(i) These securities are registered in the name of and beneficially owned by Shine Top Limited, a (i) ZEES T A R &R Z B 5 ok X 32 Z Shine Top
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. The entire issued share capital of Shine Limited®) 4 3% % iC - ¥ A 3% 2 7] & z % A ° Shine Top
Top Limited is beneficially owned by China Top Limited, a company incorporated in the British Limited2 B R H TR A M ERBRE LB B EMK L
Virgin Islands and is ultimately owned by Mr. Thomas Lau, Luen-hung. Accordingly, Mr. China Top Limited & & # A + M 280K £ £ R & KZR R
Thomas Lau, Luen-hung was deemed to be interested in 14,219,622 shares held by Shine Top AR - AL - RIBEES RS R - BI808 5 £ WARIE
Limited under the SFO as at 31st December, 2009. FAShine Top Limited T 5 /5 14,219,622 % f% 17 7 4 5 #E %5 »

Other than as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of any Fr F X BEREZEN R _ZTTAF+ A

other relevant interests or short positions in the issued share capital of the =1t —H ' AR AW FHEAR R G E ET
Company as at 31st December, 2009. BRAREEMEMABEERIORE -
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Directors’ Report % % E‘ #& tl:lt % (continued #&)

PURCHASE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY'’S
LISTED SHARES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed shares.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”). The Company considers all of the independent non-
executive directors are independent.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
directors and eligible employees, details of which are set out in note 28
to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the
Year.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of a significant event occurring after the reporting period are set
out in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Directors’ Report ZE E B E E (continued &)

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to re-
appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

Qiu Jiangang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 19th April, 2010
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Independent Auditor's Report % #Z A0 k&=

Deloitte.
=g

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CNNC INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of CNNC
International Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the "Group”) set out on pages 31 to 95 which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31st December,
2009 and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility
includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal control
relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that
are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our
audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors of the
Company, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31st December, 2009 and
of the Group's loss and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
19th April, 2010
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 44 2@z &
For the year ended 31st December, 2009 HEZ _-_TZNF+ A=+ —-HILFZE
2009 2008
—BEhE —EENF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5F BETR BT T
Revenue I 25 5 136,571 209,082
Cost of sales 3 € gl R (200,166)
Gross profit EF 3,643 8,916
Other income H A YA 6 6,709 2,303
Selling and distribution expenses HENMDHEAX (5.396) (8,927)
Administrative expenses THRAX (31,393) (18,066)
Other expenses HE (5.645) (2,518)
Finance costs B & AN 7 (CAYE)) (2,138)
Loss before taxation BrEiATEE (41,655) (20,430)
Income tax credit FIT 15 B 48 % 713
Loss for the year FAERE (19,717)
Other comprehensive income Hitz2milk A (&Bi8)
(loss)
Exchange difference arising on MEEEZIEREZR
translation 829
Fair value gain on an available-for- AEHERE
sale investment <A ER = 44
Reclassification adjustment for the EFoELETHREERE
cumulative gain included in profit Bzt AB 2 25t
or loss upon disposal of an W 75 8 B
available-for-sale investment — (27)
Other comprehensive income FRNEM2EEA
for the year 846
Total comprehensive loss for the KABIHEE A BIEFAE
year, attributable to owners of the T £ 18 4 58
Company 1 (18,871)
Basic loss per share FIEANEE 11 (GLEORNEER:AY  (HKS.1 cents 7B 1ll)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

At 31st December, 2009 A -_ZTZhE+-_A=+—H

FE BB R

2009 2008
—EThE —EENF
NOTES HK$’'000 HK$'000
Bt 3 BETT ok e
Non-current assets ERHEE
Property, plant and equipment ME BB RKRE 12 143,557 116,004
Exploration and evaluation assets BHEEIEEE 13 165,568 —
Prepaid lease payments AN EE 15 5,887 6,020
Deposits paid for acquisition of WEEY % - BB MR E
property, plant and equipment Bzl & 16 519 1,070
123,094
Current assets REBEE
Inventories TE 17 24,002 38,848
Trade and other receivables and B U E 5 R 3 N E b e I
prepayments IR A R TN IR 18 47,304 51,081
Prepaid lease payments B E 15 133 133
Investments held for trading BIEEEKRE 19 322 207
Bank balances and cash RTEH MRS 20 607,626 400,150
9045
Current liabilities REIBE
Trade and other payables and JEAHE 5 BR 7R K H At e
accruals SRIA LA R FE R R K 21 40,549
Taxation payable FEH B IE 15
Unsecured bank loans wholly HR—FANBHEEZE
repayable within one year HIFIRITE R 22 16,000
56564
Net current assets mENEEFE 433,855
Total assets less current liabilities @& ERREE & m 556,949
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Convertible note AR =g 23 83,284
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEAE 24 4,025
7305
Net assets HEFE 469,640
Capital and reserves AR GEE
Share capital % 2 25 4,292 3,792
Reserves & 853,303 465,848
Equity attributable to owners of the AR Q &1 A A JEIH#E %%
Company 469,640

The consolidated financial statements on pages 31 to 95 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of directors on 19th April, 2010

and are signed on its behalf by:

Han Ruiping
B

DIRECTOR
EF

FINEBAEZHEEAEFBHRRER T —F
FUATNAEHESHIERTERL
YA TIHIEERREZRES

Xu Hongchao
AT AL

DIRECTOR
EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity A EAEE &

For the year ended 31st December, 2009 HE-_ZTZNF+ A=+ —HIEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FATRENES
Investments Non- Convertible Attributable
Share  revaluation distributable Merger General  note equity  Translation ~ Accumulated to owners of  Minority
Share capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve fund reserves reserve profits the Company interests Total
& ] ] F48 o8
BEx  RiER EfiftiE Pk BbtHEE g BAGE Bt REtER BEARGE  REER &%
HKS$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000 HKS$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
ERTR  EETR BT ERTRT ERTRT ERTRT BN BN ERTR ERTR  BETR  E%TR
(Note 25) (Note 26) (Note 26) (Note 26)
(Hf3£25) (Hi3£26) (Hi3£26) (Hi3£26)
At 1st January, 2008 RIFENF
—-A-A 2,200 39,352 (17) 16,584 127 7,002 — 5,163 119,263 189,674 — 189,674
Loss for the year FRER - — — — — — — — (19,717) (19,717 - (19,717)
Exchange differences arising on BEELERER
translation — — — — — — — 829 — 829 — 829
Fair value gain on an available-for-sale 4t i &£ 13 &
investment AT EYS — - 44 - - - - - - 44 - 44
Reclassification adjustment for the EFARLETHRNER
cumulative gain included in AR ABEZZHK
profit or loss upon disposal of w2 A%
an available-for-sale investment — - @n - - - - - - (27) - (27)
Total comprehensive income (loss) for R 2 E WA (F18) @8
the year - - 17 - - - - 829 (19,717) (18:871) —  (18871)
Subtotal N 2,200 39,352 — 16,584 127 7,002 — 5,992 99,546 170,803 — 170,803
Issue of new shares BITHR 1592 280,136 - — — — — — — 281,728 — 281728
Share issue expenses BARHEX — (3,261) — — — — — — — (3,261) — (3.261)
Recognition of equity component of ~ H AW EiE
the convertible note BAEHS — — - — — — 24,395 — — 24,395 — 24,395
Deferred tax liability on recognition of &2 ] 2 B Z A&
equity component of convertible  #§5 F& £ #)EIE R B
note (note 24) BfE(M5H24) — — — — — — (4,025) - - (4,025) - (4,025)
Transfer [ — — — — — 204 — — (204) — — -
At 31st December, 2008 RIZENF
+=A=+-8 3,792 316,227 — 16,584 127 7,206 20,370 5,992 99,342 469,640 — 469,640
Loss for the year FRER - - - - — — — — (40,390) (40,390) — (40390
Exchange differences arising on REELVERER
translation — — — — — — — 1,237 — 1,237 — 1,237
Total comprehensive income (loss) for &R 2 E YA (F18) @5
the year — — — — — — — 1,237 (40,390) (39,153) — (39,153)
Subtotal N 3,792 316,227 — 16,584 127 7,206 20,370 7,229 58,952 430,487 — 430,487
Issue of new shares BITHR 500 438,500 — — — — — — — 439,000 — 439,000
Share issue expenses BIRGBEX — (11,892) - - - - — — — (11,892) _ (11,892)
Acquisition of subsidiaries L4100
(note 27) (Hst27) - - - - - - - - - - 86m e
Acquisition of additional interests in %[ B 2 A%
subsidiaries (note 27) (M 3k27) - — — - - - — — — —  (63071)  (63,071)
At 315t December, 2009 RZFEAF
+=ZA=+-R 4,292 742,835 — 16,584 127 7,206 20,370 7,229 58,952 857,595 — 857,595
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows G464 BR &€ ng %

For the year ended 31st December, 2009 HEZ _-_TZNF+ A=+ —-HILFZE

2009 2008
mece b e T )\ F
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
_ H 7 BT BT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES MEET
Loss before taxation BRI ATE R (41,655) (20,430)
Adjustments for: B
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - -BENMKXEITE
equipment 16,396 17,173
Dividend income i B A (7) (30)
Finance costs Bh & K AN 9,573 2,138
Interest income FLE WA (790) (718)
Loss on write-off of property, plant and BEME HEMKE
equipment Z EE 296 109
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HEMHEHLEE
investment wE 2 W
Operating cash flows before movements in %g ﬁ TEERZ
working capital ERMEME (16,187) (1,785)
Decrease in inventories 7{‘;\,}& > 15,445 2,135
Decrease in trade and other receivables and  fE i & 5 BF 7t & E fib JiE U JXIB
prepayments VA B T8 - FRIE R A 7,721 6,191
(Increase) decrease in investments held for BEEFHEGE N D
trading (115) 336
(Decrease) increase in trade and other FENE SRR L EH M ENTIE
payables and accruals AR B st RR CRi) 5 0 (18,968)
Cash (used in) generated from operations SR (A EE 2RSS (12,104) 14,749
Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded REIFBEMEH — 340
Taxation in other jurisdictions paid AU E A R AR S B IR (102)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM OPERATING (RE)RBEELSEREZ
ACTIVITIES R&FHE (12,206) 14,775
INVESTING ACTIVITIES HEEE
Acquisition of subsidiaries W BB 8 A ) 27 (132,499) —
Acquisition of additional interests in EEN B AR 27
subsidiaries (CEX7A)) —
Additions of exploration and evaluation assets U 8% &) # K 51 (4 & & (8,193) —
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BB EWE K= L& (1,919) (13,836)
Interest received = U R B 790 718
Dividends received B E 7 30
Deposits paid on acquisition of property, WHEME BERIZE
plant and equipment B2 & — (1,070)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES F{EiZE EE 2R &S (204,885) (14,158)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES RLEEE
Proceed from issue of new shares BT ERE 439,000 281,728
Share issue expenses BITRMDAX (11,892) (3.261)
Interest paid 2R FE (2,578) (659)
Proceed from issue of convertible note WITR AR Z R AT 18 A — 106,200
New bank loans raised FESRITER — 11,000
Repayment of bank loans EERITER — (14,334)
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES KREREEEZHESHE 424,530 380,674
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH RERBFSEEHEMEEHE
EQUIVALENTS 207,439 381,291
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AR RREEEYD
BROUGHT FORWARD 400,150 18,807
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE IEEERSEH 2 HE
CHANGES 37 52

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS CARRIED IR& RIS ZEYsEEE -
FORWARD, represented by bank balances RIRTTES LIRS HK
and cash 607,626 400,150
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 44 Bf & & & Bt 5t

For the year ended 31st December, 2009 HEZ _-_TZNF+ A=+ —-HILFZE

1.

GENERAL

CNNC International Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated as
an exempted company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands
under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands on 25th June,
2002 and its shares have been listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 6th January,
2003.

The Company’s parent is CNNC Overseas Uranium Holding Limited
("CNNC Overseas”), a company incorporated in Hong Kong with
limited liability. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
Company’s intermediate holding company is China Uranium
Corporation Limited, which is, in turn, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of China National Nuclear Corporation (FF Bl #% T ¥ &£ & A 7))
("CNNC"), an entity owned by the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC") government (“state-controlled entities”).

The addresses of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate
Information” section to the annual report.

The functional currency of the Company is United States dollars
("US$"). The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") for the convenience of the
shareholders, as the Company is listed in Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group acquired equity interests in Western
Prospector Group Ltd. (“Western Prospector”) (together with its
subsidiaries known as “Western Prospector Group”). The Group
started to engage in the exploration of mineral properties business
since then.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”) are
manufacture and distribution of die-casting parts, and exploration
of mineral properties.

1.

—REH
FHRERERAR(ARADR=-F
Z_FRATHERBEREHERD
AEERERBEMKRLAEREE
BRom HROB-ZZTZT=F—-—ARX
FEEEEBERZMARR A ([H
R ET e

ZANYNSCTE: RS NIV DiS o 2 VAL
BRARFZEIHEZERBRA A
(T8 ARBAEERR K
RAZFNERR B ST BEEZEI
MEBRQA  ZRAATEARK
ME(FEDBF#EENER(EA
ERBDFEZIEZEEQA(PRE
EDMmEEMBAR -

ARrlz gt ERE IR EBE XIS
REJRIABEM] —EHKE -

ARBZNEEER/RET(ET]) -
HRARBREE LT ARG E
BRR - ZEMBHRRABE(TEE]
BIME

F A A & E U B Western Prospector
Group Ltd. ([FEHB AR ND(REWB L
AN THEBRIARARSEED - -8
b AEBERREEMRBEYER
75 o

ARAREMBAR (T XHRBIAE

B2 ERXRHREERD HEE
HRMERBEYE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & 81 7% R 2% MY 3 (continued )
For the year ended 31st December, 2009 HEZ _-_TZNF+ A=+ —-HILFZE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 2. FERH:TREETEHRUEER

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS(s)") L ER(EFEMBRESER))
In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and RAFEE AEBECERBTINBES

AE A ((HEESFMAE])BM
MR LRI BERE G ERTER
FHERID - BRT kR ([HR] k&

revised Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS(s)"),
Amendments and Interpretations (“new and revised HKFRSs")

| N I8

issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants

(the "HKICPA™). BRI EEUBHREEL]) -

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) Presentation of Financial Statements BB EE IR ERld e
(ZZ2EFEEET)
HKAS 23 (Revised 2007) Borrowing Costs BB G ERHE235% BERAE
(ZZZEFEEET
HKAS 32 & 1 (Amendments) Puttable Financial Instruments and Obligations BB QT ERERRERE R HESRTARESR
Arising on Liquidation (BETA) BELEZEME
HKFRS 1 & HKAS 27 (Amendments) Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly BEREVBRESENEIR R BEAMBAT - LR
Controlled Entity or Associate BB G ERIE275 FIEERBE QA2
[CCHES) B A
HKFRS 2 (Amendment) Vesting Conditions and Cancellations EBMIEHRE R E25% SBEREE
CCHES)
HKFRS 7 (Amendment) Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments BB RS HERETR HREBSMIAY
CCHES) R
HKFRS 8 Operating Segments SIS RS AR E 85 EIES B
Hong Kong (International Financial Embedded Derivatives B (BERUBRERESR BRAPTETA
Reporting Interpretation Committee) Bg)([&7%5 (B0 %R
("HK(IFRIC)") — Interpretation (“Int”) 9 tREZEY)]) —2E
& HKAS 39 (Amendments) (BRBDFSREEES
FHAERISE3958 (18 RT 4%)
HK(IFRIC) — Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes EB (BB EREREE BEEAWEE
B®) — REE13R
HK(IFRIC) — Int 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate B (AR BREREER R REME 2
BE) — RESISH
HK(IFRIC) — Int 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign EB (BBRYBRERES TEINETGIR A F R
Operation 8g) — REE 165
HK(IFRIC) — Int 18 Transfer of Assets form Customers EFB (BBRYBRERES HBERFZAE
B®) — 2B 18H
HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2008, except BB EREER (EFTA) B—ZTTANFEA—H
for the amendment to HKFRS 5 that is sk ERIG 2 FEH
effective for annual periods beginning or ARz BEBHIE®R
after 1st July, 2009 LR ESHE BT
SN BB N\FHEM
ZEBUBRE AR
Z
HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2009 in BBV BREEL(BFTA) —EThERBR SR
relation to the amendment to paragraph 80 AERI| %3955 80 2
of HKAS 39 ERTRM 2 EEM T

WA 2 B

Except as described below, the adoption of the new and revised BR T XCRTHLE SN - FRANET AT RASHERT
HKFRSs had no material effect on the consolidated financial BB B ELERNE AN E BRI B
statements of the Group for the current or prior accounting A B REeBRRITESE X
periods. TE -

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) has introduced a number of terminology BB EREIR (2T LFLE
changes (including revised titles for the consolidated financial DS AZEHBAANE (BEEBTHFE
statements) and changes in the format and content of the PR Z2EB)REAEMBRERZ
consolidated financial statements. FEARABKE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 47 & B 7% ¥ R B 5E (continued #)
For the year ended 31st December, 2009 HEZ _-_TZNF+ A=+ —-HILFZE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS(s)")
(continued)

HKFRS 8 is a disclosure standard that has resulted in a redesignation
of the Group’s reportable segments and changes in the basis of
measurement of segment profit or loss, segment assets and
segment liabilities. Details of which are shown in note 5.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 expand the disclosures required in
relation to fair value measurements in respect of financial
instruments which are measured at fair value. The Group has not
provided comparative information for the expanded disclosures in
accordance with the transaction provision set out in the
amendments.

In previous years, the Group expensed all borrowing costs that
were directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset when they were incurred. HKAS 23
(Revised 2007) removes the option previously available to expense
all borrowing costs when incurred. The adoption of HKAS 23
(Revised 2007) has resulted in the Group changing its accounting
policy to capitalise all such borrowing costs as part of the cost of
the qualifying asset. The Group has applied the revised accounting
policy to borrowing costs relating to qualifying assets for which the
commencement date for capitalisation is on or after 1st January,
2009 in accordance with the transitional provisions in HKAS 23
(Revised 2007). As the revised accounting policy has been applied
prospectively from 1st January, 2009, this change in accounting
policy has not resulted in restatement of amounts reported in
respect of prior accounting periods. No impact to the consolidated
financial statements was resulted from this change during the year.

2.

FER#s] REETEEMBER
HEA(TEFEMBREEAD
(%)
BERBREEHFSRR—ARE
A REFEEAEEATRERDY
DREXRSBEAAEE DHEE
RAHMBMAELRE - AHEHR
Py 3551 R ©

FEEMBHRELERESR ZETEKR
BAVFEFEZERTAAFENE
FIsHE REZFETAHZBER
3 AEBEYBEEHRCREARES
HZHLBER -

RBEFE AEBEREREEEE -
BN EEREREEZLMBRBENX
ARBERIHE BB G ERF23
(R LFELERD B AR HA
BREBEMARE LR EEMRR -
RABTERFENBEBR(-TT L
FEECIBAEERZEE GG
BR A BELABEXRABETE
ARAEBREERAZ — & - K&
BREEEGFEAUFBR(ZFT
THERIERD 2 BEGXEREER
ZEHBRR R-_TEENAF—HA—H
A2 RARKBEEREEZEERA
BABEAR -BHREBIIZETHRZ
RMWEPE —_TTANF-A—RB %
S BRREH T EIIMEIBEE
HAZE2HRRA-FR - ZZFHAL
BUEAMBHRREXTE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %54 B4 78 5 3% M 5T (continued %)

For the year ended 31st December, 2009 HEZ_—_TZNF+ A=+ —HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS(s)")

(continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised

Standards, Amendments or Interpretations that have been issued

but are not yet effective:

HKFRSs (Amendments)

Amendment to HKFRS 5 as part of Improvements
to HKFRSs 2008!

2.

FER G RAEIE T B RMBR
HEA(EFEMBHREEL]D)
()

7K g )3 4 52 5 A T 5 2 S A6 1R
KA T RASIEET R 5T
RE:

EBMBREER (BRTAX) BB B RIS

FZERIER-F

SENEREBUBR
ERAZ B —
o

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs 2009? EBPRMELD (BETA) —ETNEERUH

HKAS 24 (Revised)
HKAS 27 (Revised)
HKAS 32 (Amendment)
HKAS 39 (Amendment)

HKFRS 1 (Amendment)

Related Party Disclosures®

Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements'
Classification of Rights Issues*

Eligible Hedged Items’

Additional Exemptions for First-time Adopters?

s 2 A2 i
ER R EAE215 (EERT) BREALTER
BERGERE2R (EER) HKARBUMBHRR
EARREAER(ETA) HERoE
ERGEREINR(EFTA)  AEREBEE
ERAMBREEREIH BHIREME 2o
(BRI A) R

HKFRS 1 (Amendment) Limited Exemption from Comparative HKFRS 7 BEEVEREEDFE15H HRRMEBBEE
Disclosures for First-time Adopters® (BETA) B 75 ¥R 45 2E B 55757
HBEEEERNE
R #A %5
HKFRS 2 (Amendment) Group Cash-settled Share-based Payment BB RE LR E25R EEURSEHEBRND
Transactions? [CEXE:N) REBZHRR S
HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations’ EBU R E LR F3% ¥BEH
(B1EET)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments’ BB B RE LR FE5H &Rt T A
HK (IFRIC) — Int 14 (Amendment) Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement® E5 (BB BRERE RIEEABE BN
ZE®) —RBE14R RIES
(BT &)
HK (IFRIC) — Int 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners' BB (AR BHRE2E M#EBADIRIFER S
ZE®) —REFITH AE
HK (IFRIC) — Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity R (BERVBRERE IABRATABESR
Instruments® ZE®) —REBFE19%R a &
L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2009. ! BE-STNFtA-Bd &Mz FERHBE
B e
2 Amendments that are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2 BB _EENFELtA-—BX T —TF—A—
2009 and 1st January, 2010, as appropriate. B (RBRERTE) 52 % F1A 2 F & B AR -
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2010. 3 BT TF A BBz FERRE
o
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st February, 2010. ‘ BT TF_A—HazERABFERRAE
e
s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2010. s BT THF+tA B EABRZFERHBE
o
6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2011. 6 BT —F—A BBz FERRE
o
7 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2013. 7 BT =F—A—HaZEeRBEzFEHRHRE
e

The application of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the Group’s
accounting for business combination for which the acquisition date
is on or after 1st January, 2010. HKAS 27 (Revised) will affect the
accounting treatment for changes in the Group’s ownership

interest in a subsidiary.

F& P& W15 3RS BRI SE35% (RBIER])
ARerBWEBRAHR T —TF—
A-—BgzRAKREXBAHZ G
BRIE - BB G ERIFE275 (B ER])
HeTEERMRNAKERKE AR
BERDEH2EERE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 47 & B 7% 38 R B 7E (continued #)
For the year ended 31st December, 2009 HEZ_—_TZNF+ A=+ —HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRS(s)")

(continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (“HKFRS 9”) introduces new
requirements for the classification and measurement of financial
assets and will be effective from 1st January 2013, with earlier
application permitted. The standard requires all recognised financial
assets that are within the scope of HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement” to be measured at either amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that (i) are held
within a business model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows and (ii) have contractual cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost. All other
debt investments and equity investments are measured at fair
value. The application of HKFRS 9 might affect the classification
and measurement of the Group’s financial assets.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of the
other new and revised Standards, Amendments or Interpretations
will have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

2.

FER#s] REETEEMBER
HEA(EFEMBREEAD
(&)

ARG REEAFR BT A
((BBHBREEANFEIHRD ISR
BENBRABZHNM/E Hh-F
—=F— B BRER LARME
Ao BOERIRE BB G EHE R F395
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 42 & 81 7% TR 2% MY 3T (continued )

For the year ended 31st December, 2009 HEZ_—_TZNF+ A=+ —HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments, which
are measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting policies
set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
(its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Company has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so
as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income from the effective date of acquisition and up to the
effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those
used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are
presented separately from the Group’s equity therein. Minority
interests in the net assets consist of the amount of those interests
at the date of the original business combination and the minority’s
share of changes in equity since the date of the combination.
Losses applicable to the minority in excess of the minority’s interest
in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated against the interests of the
Group except to the extent that the minority has a binding
obligation and is able to make an additional investment to cover
the losses.

On acquisition of additional interest in subsidiaries, goodwill is
calculated as the difference between the considerations paid for
the additional interest and the carrying amount of the net assets of
the subsidiaries attributable to the additional interest acquired. If
the Group's additional interest in the net assets of the subsidiaries
exceeds the consideration paid for the additional interest, the
excess is recognised in profit or loss.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %54 B4 78 5 3% M 5T (continued %)

For the year ended 31st December, 2009 HEZ_—_TZNF+ A=+ —HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Interest in a jointly controlled entity

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment of a
separate entity in which ventures have joint control over the
economic activity of the entity are referred to as jointly controlled
entities.

The Group recognises its interests in jointly controlled entities using
proportionate consolidation. Under this method, the Group’s share
of each of the assets, liabilities, income and expenses of the jointly
controlled entity are combined with the Group’s similar line items,
line by line, in the consolidated financial statements. All material
intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated to
the extent of the Group's interest.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold in
the normal course of business, net of returns and sales related
taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods are recognised when goods are
delivered and title has been passed.

Interest income from a financial asset excluding financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Dividend income from investments including financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised when the Group’s rights
to receive payment have been established.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services, other than
construction in progress, are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment other than construction in progress, over their
estimated useful lives and after taking into account their estimated
residual value, using the straight line method.
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,Zf-f\ = 2! 7J 7% i& % Bﬁ Ef (continued #&)

For the year ended 31st December, 2009 HEZ_—_TZNF+ A=+ —HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Construction in progress includes property, plant and equipment in
the course of construction for production or for its own use
purposes. Construction in progress is carried at cost less any
recognised impairment loss. Construction in progress is classified to
the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these
assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences
when the assets are ready for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognised.

Leasehold land and buildings under development for
future owner-occupied purpose

When the leasehold land and buildings are in the course of
development for production or for administrative purposes, the
leasehold land component is classified as a prepaid lease payment
and amortised over a straight line basis over the lease term. During
the construction period, the amortisation charge provided for the
leasehold land is included as part of costs of buildings under
construction. Buildings under construction are carried at cost, less
any identified impairment losses. Depreciation of buildings
commences when they are available for use (i.e. when they are in
the location and condition necessary for them to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management).

Exploration and evaluation assets

Exploration and evaluation assets are recognised at cost on initial
recognition. Subsequent to initial recognition, exploration and
evaluation assets are stated at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses.

Exploration and evaluation assets include the cost of exploration
rights and the expenditure incurred in the search for natural
resources as well as the determination of the technical feasibility
and commercial viability of extracting those resources.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2009 HEZ_—_TZNF+ A=+ —HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Exploration and evaluation assets (continued)

When the technical feasibility and commercial viability of extracting
natural resources become demonstrable, previously recognised
exploration and evaluation assets are reclassified as either intangible
assets or property, plant and equipment. These assets are assessed
for impairment before reclassification, and any impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits
received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating
lease are recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease
term on a straight line basis.

Leasehold land and building

The land and building elements of a lease of land and building are
considered separately for the purpose of lease classification, unless
the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land
and building elements, in which case, the entire lease is generally
treated as a finance lease and accounted for as property, plant and
equipment. To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can
be made reliably, leasehold interests in land are accounted for as
operating leases and amortised over the lease term on a straight
line basis.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional currency
of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in its functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are re-translated
at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
re-translated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 42 & 81 7% TR 2% MY 3T (continued )
For the year ended 31st December, 2009 HEZ_—_TZNF+ A=+ —HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) at
the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period,
and their income and expenses are translated at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the period, in which case, the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity (the translation reserve).

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale
for which the commencement date for capitalisation is on or after 1st
January, 2009, are added to the cost of those assets until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Government grants related to depreciable assets are presented as a
deduction from the carrying amount of the relevant asset in the
consolidated statement of financial position and transferred to
profit or loss over the useful lives of the related assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 47 & B 7% 38 R B 7E (continued #)
For the year ended 31st December, 2009 HEZ_—_TZNF+ A=+ —HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to retirement benefit schemes are charged as an expense
when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
it further excludes statement of comprehensive income items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of
other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and interests in
joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 42 & 81 7% TR 2% MY 3T (continued )
For the year ended 31st December, 2009 HEZ_—_TZNF+ A=+ —HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on the tax rate (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner
in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates to
items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is calculated using the weighted average method.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into one of the three
categories, including financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss and loans and receivables. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 47 & B 7% 38 R B 7E (continued #)
For the year ended 31st December, 2009 HEZ_—_TZNF+ A=+ —HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The Group's financial assets at fair value through profit and loss
represent financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is
classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the near future;

o it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments
that the Group manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

Financial assets held for trading are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value arising from remeasurement recognised
directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or
interest earned on the financial assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade and other receivables and bank balances and cash) are carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment
loss on financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets
Financial assets, other than those financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss, are assessed for indicators of impairment at
the end of the reporting period. Financial assets are impaired where
there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For an available-for sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below its cost
is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 42 & 81 7% TR 2% MY 3T (continued )
For the year ended 31st December, 2009 HEZ_—_TZNF+ A=+ —HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instrumentscontinued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment

could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;

o default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy

or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables,
assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are
subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective basis.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group's past experience of collecting payments
and observable changes in national or local economic conditions
that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that
the asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of
trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount
of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a
trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that
the carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have
been had the impairment not been recognised.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will not
be reversed in profit or loss in subsequent periods. Any increase in
fair value subsequent to impairment loss is recognised directly in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in investment
revaluation reserve.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the group after deducting all of its liabilities.
The accounting policies adopted in respect of financial liabilities
and equity instruments are set out below.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables, unsecured
bank loans and convertible note are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Convertible note

Convertible note issued by the Group that contains both the liability
and conversion option components classified separately into
respective items on initial recognition. Conversion option that will
be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another
financial asset for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity
instruments is classified as an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability component is
determined using the prevailing market interest of similar non-
convertible debts. The difference between the gross proceed of the
issue of the convertible note and the fair value assigned to the
liability component, representing the conversion option for the
holder to convert the notes into equity, is included in equity
(convertible note equity reserve).
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Convertible note (continued)

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the convertible
note is carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. The equity component, representing the option to convert
the liability component into ordinary shares of the Company, will
remain in convertible note equity reserve until the embedded
option is exercised in which case the balance stated in convertible
note equity reserve will be transferred to share premium. Where
the option remains unexercised at the expiry date, the balance
stated in convertible note equity reserve will be released to
accumulated profits. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
upon conversion or expiration of the option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible note are
allocated to the liability and conversion option components in
proportion to their relative fair values. Transaction costs relating to
the conversion option derivative is charged to profit or loss
immediately. Transaction costs relating to the liability component
are included in the carrying amount of the liability portion and
amortised over the period of the convertible note using the
effective interest method.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition of a
financial asset, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 47 & Bf 7% 38 R B #E (continued #)
For the year ended 31st December, 2009 HEZ_—_ZTZNF+ A=+ —-HILFZE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment losses

Tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss,
if any. If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.

Exploration and evaluation assets

The carrying amount of the exploration and evaluation assets is
reviewed annually and adjusted for impairment in accordance with
HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” whenever one of the following
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable (the list is not exhaustive):

the period for which the Group has the right to explore in
the specific area has expired during the period or will expire
in the near future, and is not expected to be renewed;

substantive expenditure on further exploration for and
evaluation of mineral resources in the specific area is neither
budgeted nor planned;

exploration for and evaluation of mineral resources in the
specific area have not led to the discovery of commercially
viable quantities of mineral resources and the Group has
decided to discontinue such activities in the specific area; or

sufficient data exist to indicate that, although a development
in the specific area is likely to proceed, the carrying amount
of the exploration and evaluation asset is unlikely to be
recovered in full from successful development or by sale.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss whenever the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31st December, 2009 HEZ_—_ZTZNF+ A=+ —-HILFZE

4.

KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
within the next financial year, are discussed below:

Estimated impairment on property, plant and
equipment

The impairment loss for property, plant and equipment is
recognised for the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is calculated as the
higher of its fair value less costs to sell and value-in-use. The
recoverable amounts are determined based on the best information
available to reflect the amount obtainable at the end of the
reporting period. Where the recoverable amount is less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise.

Estimated impairment on exploration and evaluation
assets

Exploration and evaluation assets are assessed for impairment when
facts and circumstances suggest the carrying amount may exceed
its recoverable amount. As detailed in note 13, the implementation
of various provisions of the new energy law might affect the
recoverable amount of the exploration and evaluation assets. The
directors of the Company exercise their judgment in estimating the
recoverable amount with reference to a discounted cash flow
analysis, whereas the possible outcomes of the new energy law
were assessed. Where the recoverable amount is less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise.

4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 47 & Bf 7% 38 R B #E (continued #)
For the year ended 31st December, 2009 HEZ_—_ZTZNF+ A=+ —-HILFZE

5.

REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION
The Group has adopted HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments” (“HKFRS

8") with effect from 1st January, 2009. HKFRS 8 is a disclosure
standard that requires operating segments to be identified on the
basis of internal reports about components of the Group that are
regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker, the
Group’s Executive Directors, in order to allocate resources to
segments and to assess their performance. In contrast, the
predecessor standard (HKAS 14 “Segment Reporting” ("HKAS
14")) required an entity to identify two sets of segments (business
and geographical) using a risks and returns approach, with the

I

entity’s “system of internal financial reporting to key management

|u

personnel” serving only as the starting point for the identification
of such segments. In the past, the Group’s primary reporting
format was business segments. The application of HKFRS 8 has
resulted in a redesignation of the Group’s operating segments as
compared with the primary segments determined in accordance

with HKAS 14.

In prior years, primary segment information was analysed on the
basis of the types of goods sold by the Group’s operating divisions
(i.e. aluminium, zinc, magnesium and others). However, information
reported to the Group’s Executive Directors for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment focuses more
specifically on the principal activities of the Group.

Accordingly, the Group’s operating segments are redesignated
under HKFRS 8 as:

o Exploration of mineral properties — exploration of uranium
and coal, a new segment designated in 2009 through the
acquisition of Western Prospector Group

o Manufacture and distribution of die casting parts —
manufacture and distribution of aluminium, zinc and
magnesium die casting parts

Information regarding the above segments is reported below.
Amounts reported for the prior year have been restated to conform
to the requirements of HKFRS 8.

5.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2009 HEZ_—_ZTZNF+ A=+ —-HILFZE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continvedy 5. W8 R 53 S & #l o)

Segment revenue and results SrEBM s R 3 AR
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results by AEBWENEEZEBYIL 2D
operating segment. W
For the year ended 31st December, 2009 BE-_FTEALFE+-RA=+—81L
£E
Manufacture
and

Exploration distribution
of mineral of die casting

properties parts Total
Bix WERDH

WEME B $5 3B 4 @st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

EETT EETT EETRT
REVENUE [

RESULTS E3

Segment results D EHELE (E)) (16,827) (24,586)
Central administration costs A 77 AR AR (7,496)
Finance costs Bh & B AR (CRYE))

Loss before taxation B i Al 5 18 (41,655)
Income tax credit g & 1,265

Loss for the year FREE (40,390)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 47 & Bl 75 3% 2% BT 5T (continued )
For the year ended 31st December, 2009 HEZ_—_ZTZNF+ A=+ —-HILFZE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continvedy 5. W28 B 53 S & #l o)

Segment revenue and results (continued) SRS R A ()
For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-_FENFE+=-A=Z+—8L
F£E
Manufacture
and

Exploration distribution
of mineral  of die casting

properties parts Total
B HHERDH
WEME JER 65 2B 1 Er
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T AT T BT T
REVENUE W 2% — 209,082 209,082
RESULTS E 35
Segment results D EBE LS — (13,362) (13,362)
Central administration costs Ao 1T AR R (4,930)
Finance costs Bh & kR (2,138)
Loss before taxation & T B &S 18 (20,430)
Income tax credit FEHEL 713
Loss for the year FERNEE (19,717)
The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as EENM BN REREAEBEMW
the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3. Segment loss A3t AUl 2 R BRER - S EEE
represents the loss from each segment without allocation of central EXDHEAZEBE TEEFRRT
administration costs and finance costs. This is the measure reported B AR EVE KA 2 5B o b T Bt
to the chief operating decision maker for the purposes of resource TERDERERRIABMAEZELE
allocation and performance assessment. REANZERZFTEEHR -
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For the year ended 31st December, 2009 &

EF_F

?‘véf\ é E]f ﬁ‘% 3:::5& %% Bﬁ Ef (continued #5)

TAG+-A=+—BILEE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (ontinues) 5. YR E D EEHFE
Segment assets and liabilities NHMEERERE
The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities by AEBEENBBKEEBEDIL 2N
operating segment: m
Manufacture
and
Exploration distribution
of mineral of die casting
properties parts Total
Bhig HWERSH
REME RS ER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ok amape ok mape ok e
As at 31st December, 2009 R-ZBELE
+-—RA=+—H
ASSETS BE
Segment assets o EbE E 211,916 783,002 994,918
LIABILITIES BE
Segment liabilities DEBE 43,264 44,417
Unallocated liabilities AOEEE 92,906
Consolidated liabilities e BE
As at 31st December, 2008 NR-ZFF|INE
+-—A=+—H
ASSETS BE
Segment assets DEEE — 613,513 613,513
LIABILITIES BE
Segment liabilities DEBEE — 56,564 56,564
Unallocated liabilities Ao EE 87,309
Consolidated liabilities SZAEBE 143,873
For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and MEER IBRE LR ESHHEERM
allocating resources between segments: Bl
. all assets are allocated to operating segments; and . FIEEENREEZEENE &

o all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other than o
the convertible note and related deferred tax liabilities.

B&ES

#B e

B AT 3R B 3R 4R Ko 4R BR R RE AR OR
MEREIRELED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Loss on write-off of property, plant and
equipment

2 E1E 267

For the year ended 31st December,

BE-_EENE+=H

For the year ended 31st December, 2009 HEZ_—_ZTZNF+ A=+ —-HILFZE
5. REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (contined) 5. W RX S EEHE @
Other segment information for the current and prior AEERBEEEZEMSPE
years: £l
Manufacture
and
Exploration distribution
of mineral of die casting
properties parts Total
Byl HWERSEH
REME [R5 EB 14 fEst
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BT T
Amounts included in the measure of 38 9 i F = B8R
segment profit or loss or segment SEBMEERFITAZ
assets: &%
For the year ended 31st December, #HE-_TThL&E+=-H
2009 =E+—BLFEE
Addition to non-current assets NEERHEE 210,021 212,576
Depreciation and amortisation PrE Ry 2,815 19,138

296

2008 =+—HILFEE
Addition to non-current assets ANEBEIERBDEE — 17,218 17,218
Depreciation and amortisation WrE Ly — 17,173 17,173
Loss on write-off of property, plantand i85 % - WE k&
equipment ZEE — 109 109
Revenue from major products REEEERZWE
2009 2008
—ETNF NS
HK$'000 HK$'000
EETR BT T
Sale of aluminium die casting parts HE R E S 127,942 195,110
Sale of zinc die casting parts i & P RSB AR 6,981 12,647
Sale of magnesium die casting parts HE SRR E I 1,648 1,181
Others Hib — 144
136,571 209,082
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?‘véf\ é ,H\Z‘f ﬁ‘% 3:::5& %% Bﬁ Ef (continued #5)

For the year ended 31st December, 2009 HEZ_—_ZTZNF+ A=+ —-HILFZE

5.

REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued) 5.

Geographical information

The Group's operation is principally located in the PRC (country of
domicile). The Group’s revenue by geographical market based on
destination of goods irrespective of locations of customers, and
information about its non-current assets by geographical location

of the assets are detailed below:

K EPE|EFR @

i [E & #
AEEBFTZAEFPHGEMER) &E -
AEEIZMWETSE D 2 W DR E
ERzmBEHE(TREAHE) AE
£ -NBEBEEERDEE 2R E
DZEEBREINNT

- L VRN —TT)\F

United States of America

The PRC (country of domicile)

Germany

Hong Kong

Italy

United Kingdom
Sweden
Mongolia
Others

xH

B (R A B )
e

2

BARM

HE

I £

e

H

Information about major customers

Revenues from customers of the corresponding years contributing
over 10% of the total sales of the Group are as follows:

Revenue from

Non-current assets
ERBHEE

2009 2008 2009 2008

T NS

external customers

RS8R E 5 AR 1S W 2

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$'000
EETT BT BT BT
36,535 — —
23,399 107,515 121,173
18,494 — —
15,002 1,051 1,921

11,788 —
6,875 —
5,607 —

— 206,965 —

18,871 — —

136,571 209,082 315,531

FREXEEFRZEH
HEFEAREPMBEEEAEE
ZHERTEI0% A &M

Customer A
Customer B

Customer C

2009 2008
=L L VRN —=z )&
HK$'000 HK$'000
Lkl BETT
33,852

24,492

29,826

88,170

All customers are related to manufacture and distribution of die

casting parts segment.

FBREPFREER D HES BN
THEE o
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For the year ended 31st December, 2009 HEZ_—_ZTZNF+ A=+ —-HILFZE

6.

OTHER INCOME

6. HittlgA

2009 2008
k- L VRN —TT)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T

Included in other income are the following:

HBRAZETBEATSE:

Dividend income from available-for-sale AHEEREZREWA
investments 30
Dividend income from investments held for BEEEKREZIREWA
trading —
Fair value change on investments held for FEEEKREQNFEED
trading —
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HERHEHERE 2z
investment 27
Interest income FEWA 718
PRC tax refund on capital investment in a RENEARIERIEERT
subsidiary 1,459
FINANCE COSTS 7. ®MAERE
2009 2008
by B T\ F
HK$'000 HK$'000

EETT BT T

Interest on unsecured bank loans wholly

ARAFRATBEED

repayable within five years ERFRITERAE 659

Effective interest expenses on convertible note A #i% =45 ~ B 2 F
(note 23) (P 3%£23) 1,479
2,138
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8.

INCOME TAX CREDIT 8. FiRBif%
2009 2008
— TN S
HK$'000 HK$'000
EETR ok
Current tax: RNHATIE -
Hong Kong Profits Tax BHENEH -
PRC Enterprise Income Tax Pl ERTER 245
245
Deferred tax (note 24): JE ST 18 (B E24) ¢
Current year RNEE (903)
Effect of change in tax rate MERESEFHTE (55)
(958)
Taxation attributable to the Company and its AARIRAEWEB AR EEFRE
subsidiaries (1,265) (713)

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in the
consolidated financial statements as the Group had no assessable
profits for both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law")
and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the
PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1st January, 2008 onwards.

B A 6% [ A R 4R E 3 R AR T A
M MR EGEEMBERRALEELEE
ST BE -

REFBEEEMESFATEEMER
EDREEMBHANERGED - B
“ZENF-A—BR -TEHRBLR
BIEVTE R B25% °
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For the year ended 31st December, 2009 HEZ_—_ZTZNF+ A=+ —-HILFZE

8. INCOME TAX CREDIT (continued) 8. FiEHHE%w
The income tax credit for the year can be reconciled to the loss AEEMEHRIREHLEE 2E W
before taxation per the consolidated statement of comprehensive REIRABRBAIEEYELT

income as follows:

2009 2008
“ETAE s
HK$'000 HK$'000
EETR BT T
Loss before taxation BB AT E 18 (41,655) (20,430)
Tax at the PRC enterprise income tax rate of BB E TSR E25%

25% TECBIE (5,108)
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose HZE R T W A 2 Tl 552 £ (507)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for AR AT 2 TR

tax purpose 2 2,895
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERARB 2R ETE 1,368
Effect of tax concession granted to the KABETHE QR

Company’s certain subsidiaries BEHREEEIZE (122)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries REMBEERESEZ

operating in other jurisdictions MEBARITRME 2728 740
Effect of change in tax rate MR 2 (55)
Others HAb 76
Taxation credit for the year RNEEMIBER (713)
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9.

LOSS FOR THE YEAR

9. FREE

2009
“ETRE
HK$'000
Tt

Loss for the year has been arrived at after
charging:

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Less: Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment capitalised to exploration and
evaluation assets

FABREME

ME - BEMRRBZITE
B R BEREREZNE
BAEBAEHRNMFHEE

19,138

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
charged to profit or loss

REBEDZNGEME BEEREZ
e

Directors’ remuneration (note 10) EE2M e (TE10)
Other staff costs Hih 8 THRA
Retirement benefit schemes contributions RKBAETEIHRK
(note 33) (B7E33)
Total staff costs B Ik A4R%E 46,151
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TE A R & SR B

Less: Amount capitalised in construction in
progress

B RERTREBERE AR 2R

Auditors’ remuneration

Cost of inventories recognised as expense

Loss on write-off of property, plant and
equipment

Net exchange loss

Operating lease charges on land and buildings

Penalty paid to a construction contractor in
respect of a lawsuit

Z SR B & 1,670
ERRBRARI 2TFERAN 132,928
WEmE BEREEZEE

296
b 5 518 5 58 968
THREFIEEHEEERR 5,422

R—BERFRIN FEERE
EESETEN

2008
—EENF
HK$'000
BT T

17,173

17,173
4,956
51,917

3,105
59,978
133

(133)

1,016
200,166

109
466
4,414

1,704
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10. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 10. EERESEMNE
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the seven (2008: AKRABRAEB(ZEENF: +=8)
thirteen) directors are as follows: EERaENEEMNZHE0T
2009 —BTAE
Cheong
Qiu Han Xu Huang Ying Chew Cui Zhang
Jiangang*  Ruiping* Hongchao* Mingang* Henry* Liguo* Lei* Total
Note (i)  Note (i) Note (i)
ERERRI* EREmE+  FAEr  EEE  REH E£2E RE* R
MEG B B & (ii)

HK$'000 HKS$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
AETT BEFRT AT EETI EETI ENTT ENTR ENTR

Director's fee EZHE
Other emoluments Hini &
Salaries and other MR
benefits HingF
Retirement benefit RIKEF
scheme BE
contributions '3
Total emoluments MenE 100 150
2008 —EF0\EF
Kong Cheong
Cheuk Wong Ying Loke Yu,
Quu Han Xu Tsang Chiu luen  Huang Wing  Chew Cui Zhang  LleeTho Wang alias Lok
Jiangang*  Ruiping* Hongchao* Wai**  Trevor** Mingang*  Sing**  Henry*  Liguo* Lei* Siem*  Jiangguo*  Hoi Lam* Total
Note () Note (i) Note (i)
BEEF BRT  FOE SRE~ IBRe EGEF EABe REE ENEr KRB 23R IEE: BEM A4
0 I i EE )

HKS'000 HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000 HK§'000  HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000  HKS'000 ~ HK$'000  HKS'000 HK$'000
ARTR ARTR BRTR ARTR A¥Tn ARTn AETR ARTR BRTI BETT ARTR RETr ARTT BETI

Director's fee EShe 10 10 10 — - 10 55 10 10 10 55 55 55 290
Other emoluments Etie
Salaries and other benefits EMRAMLERN - - — 2065 2579 - - - - - - - — 46k
Retirement benefit scheme EIRBF
contributions AR - - - I 1 - - - - - - — - b))
Total emoluments Henw 10 10 10 2,076 2,590 10 55 10 10 10 55 55 5 495%

* Mr. Qiu Jiangang, Mr. Han Ruiping, Mr. Xu Hongchao, Mr. Huang Mingang, Mr. * EREMIS A BEFEALE  FFABELE  =HM
Cheong Ying Chew, Henry, Mr. Cui Liguo and Mr. Zhang Lei were appointed on 5th S CREBMELS EFNBEEERRELER -
November, 2008. TZENE+—FARRESZT-

*x Mr. Tsang Chiu Wai, Mr. Kong Cheuk Luen, Trevor, Mr. Lee Tho Siem, Mr. Wang *x BRELE IBRELE TZ2HEE TER
Jianguo, Mr. Loke Yu alias Loke Hoi Lam and Mr. Wong Wing Sing resigned as SECBEBMEEREXKBAECR_TTNG
directors on 3rd December, 2008. +ZA=HBAESHY -

Note: P 3

(i) Mr. Qiu Jiangang and Mr, Han Ruiping paid all their emoluments to CNNC Overseas. (i) MEmtERERFAEINES2EETHE T

PRGN o
(i) Mr. Huang Mingang paid all his emoluments to Yenaut Industrial Co. Ltd. (ii) ERAEEINBZEETME FREIEERA
o
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10. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 10. EERESME @
(continued)
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, REBMNAAERTMA LS EF
none of them (2008: two individuals) were directors of the WEAT(ZEENFE WML ARAD
Company whose emoluments are included in the disclosure set out AEE HEZHMeE R EXHEE -
above. The emoluments of the five (2008: three) individuals were ZABANT(ZZEZENE: =Z) BN
as follows: UM
2009 2008
— TN NS
HK$°000 HK$'000
EETR ok
Salaries and other benefits I & H A4 2,367
Retirement benefit schemes contributions BAREF T 2R 12
2,379
2009 2008
= by T\ F
No. of No. of
individuals individuals
EEAY BB AH
Emoluments of the employees were BEM ST T3
within the following band: 7
Not exceeding HK$ 1,000,000 B 38 7% 1,000,000 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 751,000,001t E
75 #1,500,0007T —
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 75 #3,500,001 0 &
78 #4,000,0007C —
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of FA - AEBVEAEMNESTS AR
the directors or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement EaEHMALTZNEMMNES - fERIN
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of ABREE S IARFR EE B RRATE -
office. None of the directors has waived any emoluments during FHESHERFARETAHNS

the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 47 & Bl 75 3% 2% BT 5T (continued )
For the year ended 31st December, 2009 HEZ_—_ZTZNF+ A=+ —-HILFZE

11. LOSS PER SHARE 1. SREHE
The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable to the AKRABEAAEBEERERERTR
owners of the Company is based on the following data: BETHEEE
2009 2008
by B T\ F
HK$'000 HK$'000
EETR BT T
Loss for the purpose of basic loss per share SAESREAREENEIE (40,390) (19,717)
2008
—ETNF
‘000
T 1%
Number of shares B E
Weighted average number of ordinary shares st E & EAREEH
for the purpose of basic loss per share T I A 15 8 401,771 244,856
No diluted loss per share for the year ended 31st December, 2009 BREAATRRRIERA SR ERER
and 2008 is presented as the conversion of the convertible note B MY EZINBE_STENFR
would result in a decrease in loss per share. —EENGEFT AT HLEFEDN

SRRHE A -
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12. V¥ BERRE
Plant and
machinery
Leasehold  and other Furniture Motor  Construction
Buildings improvements  equipment and fixtures vehicles  in progress Total
BER
Wk !
#F HEVERKE  HORE REE RE  EEIRE &4
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT AETT  B¥ETR BT A%fr  A¥Trn  B%Trn
CosT B
At 1st January, 2008 RZZT\E-A—H 3,715 13,163 149,464 14,757 1,39 31,131 213,624
Exchange realignment Rk 156 343 3,451 587 63 — 4,600
Additions hE — 2,5% 10,169 1438 — 3,015 17,218
Write-offs b — — (141) — — — (141)
At 315t December, 2008 RZZENE
+-ZA=1+-H 3,871 16,102 162,943 16,782 1,457 34,146 235,301
Exchange realignment Ei#BE (1 — (29 @) - ) (39
Additions NE — 748 1,040 720 - 95 2,603
Transfer Bz 1,309 — — — — (1,309) —
Acquired on acquisition of IREE N 2 R
subsidiaries (note 27) EINGE22) 4,691 - 37,438 1,08 1218 - 4,405
Write-offs i - - (30 (142) (520) - (692)
At 315t December, 2009 RZZZNE
+ZA=1-H 9,870 16,850 201,362 18,416 2,155 32,925 281,578
DEPRECIATION AND FERRE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1st January, 2008 RZZZ\E-f-H 2,844 9,331 70,181 9,248 1,229 7337 100,170
Exchange realignment [E 5§ % 114 242 1,162 424 44 — 1,986
Provided for the year EEER 307 2,067 12,669 2,075 55 - 17,173
Eliminated on write-offs e — — 32) — — — 32
At 31st December, 2008 RZZENE
+ZA=1-H 3,265 11,640 83,980 11,747 1,328 7337 119,297
Exchange realignment [E 5§ & 3) — (13) 2 — — (18)
Provided for the year EEARE 546 1419 14,694 2,021 258 — 19,138
Eliminated on write-offs MBS — — (16) (65) (315) — (396)
At 31st December, 2009 RZZENE
+ZA=1-H 3,808 13,059 98,645 13,901 1,271 7337 138,021
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31t December, 2009 RZZENE
+ZA=1-H 6,062 3,791 102,717 4,515 884 25,588 143,557
At 31st December, 2008 RZZENE
+ZA=1-H 606 4,462 78,963 5,035 129 26,809 116,004
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 47 & Bf 7% 38 R B #E (continued #)
For the year ended 31st December, 2009 HEZ_—_ZTZNF+ A=+ —-HILFZE

12.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are depreciated over their estimated
useful lives and after taking into account of their estimated residual
value on a straight line basis at the following rates per annum:

Buildings Over the term of the leases, or 20
years, whichever is the shorter
Leasehold improvements Over the term of the leases, or 5
years, whichever is the shorter
Plant and machinery and 6%—-20%
other equipment
Furniture and fixtures

Motor vehicles

18%-33%
18%-25%

In respect of the alleged breach of contractual undertakings of
several construction contracts, a subsidiary was named as a
defendant in a District Court action in the PRC during the year
ended 31st December, 2007. All construction costs in dispute were
properly accrued in the consolidated statement of financial position
during the year ended 31st December, 2007.

This also resulted in a significant delay in the completion date of
the new factory premises. A number of the relevant assets were
determined to be impaired. Accordingly, an impairment loss of
approximately HK$7,337,000 was recognised during the year
ended 31st December, 2007.

In 2008, the District Court in the PRC ruled in favour of the
plaintiff. The subsidiary and its legal counsel appealed to the
Intermediate Court in the PRC but the Intermediate Court in the
PRC still ruled in favour of the plaintiff. Accordingly, additional
construction costs of approximately HK$2,661,000 in dispute were
accrued in the consolidated statement of financial position; while
additional penalties of approximately HK$1,704,000 and additional
legal expenses of approximately HK$198,000 were charged to the
profit or loss during the year ended 31st December, 2008. The
judgment from the Intermediate Court was final.

YE -BERERE®
BEZIRI FWE BE LK
IR B iR a8 A F B R AT
HEEFISGEE UWESEERUTF
EHEHE

BF & F B 5205
(AR EE B%E)
HEWMEEE HEFHSSF
(ABEERBE)
BEREENEM 6%-20%
A
BMRES 18%-33%

RE 18%-25%

HRWERRETIREANZA KA
w T EMBRARREBE_TTLF
TTAZ=+T B LEFEETEMIGE
e —HFRFRBEEAN FERZ
EMIEKACHRERBE_TTL
F+-_A=+—HLEFEHFSHBEMNR
MRARF -

ZEHMEYH IHRBE 2% T HH
HEBEBREH - ETHEEES KR
BBt BE-_ZTTLF+_-A
ST -RLEFECEIBZBEEERY
& #7,337,0007T °

RZZEZT)\FE - f B AR AR R
EANBF - ZHNBARIMREEEEM
mMABEPRARZERRED LGF - P
Bl R ARERIDARRSE AR -
it FrahR 2B TRRNANBE
2,661,000t R ér & M BAR AR P B2
&+ T BRSNS & 4978 151,704,000 K
BNEEE B 475 8198,000t R E 2
—EZN\F+-_A=+—HILEERE
AR A RAREREL R
REER IR -
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12.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

The directors of the Company resumed their construction plan of
the new factory premises. The directors of the Company also
conducted impairment reviews in respect of the Group's
construction in progress at the end of both reporting periods. The
fair value of the Group’s construction in progress at 31st December,
2009 have been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out
on that date by Greater China Appraisal Limited (“Greater China”),
independent qualified professional valuers not connected with the
Group. Greater China are members of the Institute of Valuers. With
reference to the valuation arrived at by Greater China, the
recoverable amount based on the fair value less costs to sell is
higher than the relevant carrying amount as at 31st December,
2009. As such, no further impairment has been recognised.

At the end of the reporting period, the directors of the Company
also test whether property, plant and equipment suffered any
impairment loss. The recoverable amounts of relevant property,
plant and equipment have been determined based on their fair
value less cost to sell. The recoverable amount was in excess of the
carrying amount of relevant property, plant and equipment.
Accordingly, no impairment was recognised in respect of these
property, plant and equipment during the year.

12. YI¥ -BERRE®

ARREECEHNRET THBEZ
EREE - ARABEENME RSB
B AEBE 2 ERZTIRETS — KR
ERT - AREZERIBR_-ZTF
NFE+TZA=+—BZAFEDERR
HERAEETEBECBIAERE
EHEMEEFEARAB(NEE])
REBETHEBEMEE - BER/MG
BHHEZEE - K2REEMER
ZEE R_FEAFT_A=1+—
BB R FER L ERATE Z AW
EgESNEEMEEE- Fit - i
B — S HERRUE -

RBERL  NRBEETEYE
BEEREZERIEMBREBRE
TAR - HEDE BEEREBEZA
WEIEBIDBEEQRFEBREHEK
REBE-HBAME BEREREZ
Al el e RS ERREE - U F
NI ERZFE - BFE R R EHER
BE
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For the year ended 31st December, 2009 HEZ_—_ZTZNF+ A=+ —-HILFZE

13. EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS 13. B)IIERFHEE

HK$'000
BT T

COST o
Acquired on acquisition of subsidiaries (note 27) WS B A RIS B8 A (M 7%27) 154,633
Additions NE 10,935
At 31st December, 2009 R-ZZEBEEANEFEF+-_A=+—H 165,568

The Group's exploration and evaluation assets were mainly arising
from the acquisition of the Western Prospector Group as set out in
note 27.

The Western Prospector Group's uranium exploration licenses were
temporarily suspended in April 2009 and July 2009 due to the
purported non-compliance with Law on Minerals, Land Law and
Law on Radiation Safety of Mongolia and purported breaches of
various laws of Mongolia respectively, reported by the inspector of
the Mineral Resources Authority of Mongolia (“MRAM"). These
suspensions have all been lifted in early July 2009 and November
2009 respectively, and the MRAM has re-registered all such
uranium exploration licenses on 12th November, 2009. Details of
these are set out in the Group's announcements dated 27th July,
2009, 21st August, 2009, 13th November, 2009 and 29th
December, 2009.

On 15th August, 2009, the Mongolian’s Law on Nuclear Energy
and Mongolia’s Law on implementing procedures of the Law on
Nuclear Energy (collectively, the “"New Laws’’) have came into force.
Under the New Laws, the People of Mongolia (the ““State’’) has the
right to take ownership without payment of either not less than
51% of the shares of the Group's Mongolia subsidiaries if State
funding was used to determine the resource during exploration, or
not less than 34% if State funding was not used to determine the
resource during exploration.

BANPH FE27FFE AR E 2 B R & AY
HEETZARNKERS QA EEM
B

BEFHEEERERRB(MRAM])
BMEAERL AIFAAEEREKXE
BFEHEEE LA REINRE
REZ2 iR ERZBEHER  Hib
RETAZEINR-_ZZTNFOAR
:g;ﬁhitﬁ%ﬁiﬂﬁ*ﬁ%%%ﬂ*
RZBZNFLARZZEZNF+—
AUV MR-ZZFEZENF+—A
TZHBH MRAME EHER2HZE
HMRET AR AR BEERNAER
E_ETENFELAZTER ZZZF
NENAZ ‘f’—EI‘:g'—?)"LE‘T’—
A+=Z=AR=ZFZFEAF+ZA=TA
AFE s RER-

RZZEZAFNATHBE FH0%
BREPI R BHREENBEREF
AP (RREIFOEPDBEER - R
EHEN RHBER(REE])B#
RENPRAEER LK B QR RH
M51% (MR BERBEFHAREE
B2 BEER) AP RZERMDE
4% (MR HFRBEPLEHAR S
BMESERRER) AR MBAN
2o
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13.

-

EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS (continued)

Based on management’s discussions with the relevant Mongolian
authorities and the advice from its Mongolian legal advisers,
following the re-registration of the uranium exploration licenses,
the license holders will have the right to apply for mining licenses
to mine or extract the resources identified in the relevant areas
covered by the exploration licenses once consensus is reached
between the Group and the relevant Mongolian authorities in
respect of the implementation of various provisions under the New
Laws.

As at 31st December, 2009, the implementation of various
provisions of the New Laws remains unclear. After taking into
consideration of legal advice and discounted cash flow analysis, in
the opinion of the directors of the Company, the outcome cannot
be reasonably determined. However, the directors of the Company
are confident that the Group's interest in the exploration and
evaluation assets will not be materially affected.

13.

,Zvéf\ é\ ,Hﬁ 7_% 3:;?& ig Bﬁ Ef (continued #5)

BERRFEEE®

REEEEHEBEETHERZTWMK
EXHi2BHEzER  AEEHE
BELTERREBI AN TZIEIEX
EREEE BEEFELHMERER
AEE FAUESBEANERRZH
ROEUE EURRKBEERETA
FBETRE 2 BB EAFTHER 2 BIR

RZTEENF+ZA=+—8" %
5~ Z EAR X 2 B A TIBHT - AR
AEERERZERZBER M RMRAR
ERER NTREAEEBEEER -A
M ARBAEFREL AKEREY
BREFEEEZ RGBT XERTE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December, 2009 &

14.

INTEREST IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY

The Group’s interest in a jointly contr

from the acquisition of Western Prospector Group. As at 31st

December, 2009, the Group had int
controlled entity:

AN
lé\\ﬂ—\lzl

ERAFT-ASt—BILER

-

olled entity was wholly arising

erests in the following jointly

14. &
AEBMPLRLEIER Y EX 2
RNBES AR EEREEL R
ZAFE+-_A=+—B ZXE£EERT
B #

Annual
— 5=

Report 2009

,H\Z‘f 4_‘,% 3:::5& i B’ﬁ Ef (continued #5)

FiEHERE 2 #x

FIYEHIE R A -

Attributable

Paid-up equity
Name of jointly Place and date of registered interest held
controlled entity registration capital by the Group Principal activity
ESHE AEE
HEEHEREE =F i3t 25 % B 24 &F M A A FiisEiEiRtE FEXER
XXEM LLC Mongolia, Mongolian Tugrik 50% Powerline
5th December, 2007 ("MNT") 5,825 operation
XXEM LLC E= 5,8255 50% LEHER
e e = B+ 2 5
(TE®Exl)

The audited financial information in r

in a jointly controlled entity which is accounted for using

espect of the Group's interest

EAREERNAFEEHERNEDRA W
MEERVBERBZHIMT &

proportionate consolidation with the line-by-line reporting format B B R AL Bl AR & VEFI R - 37 A
is set out below: DIEFNZT
As at
31st December,
2009
R-BTAE
+-—A=+—H
HK$°000
BETR
Non-current assets EmEBEE
Property, plant and equipment L ER N
Current assets MBEE

Other receivables and prepayment

H i & WK IR & T8 5 5ROR

2009
—BENE
HK$’000

EETRT

Bank balances and cash WITHEHRRE S
Current liability nE B &

Other payables oAb JE IR
Net current liability REBBEEFE
Revenue &

Expenses recognised in profit or loss RERER A
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15.

E

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

The Group's prepaid lease payments represent payments for
medium-term land use right in the PRC.

Analysed for reporting purposes as:

15.

,Zvéf\ é\ E]f i% 3:;?& ?E Bﬁ Ef (continued #5)

EHEERE
AEEZ BRBERBELTE TS
- 40 {58 PR AT 3RO -

mBEE
FERBEE

Current asset

Non-current asset

1B E Rig 2 o4
2009 2008
2 VRN —TT)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
EETT BT T
133
6,020
6,153

Note:  The amount had been reduced by a government grant of approximately

HK$8,335,000 in the form of deduction of consideration paid in respect of the land
use right acquired by the Group in the previous years, details of which are set out in
note 34.

Prepaid lease payments are amortised over the term of the land use
right of 50 years on a straight line basis.

The amount represents the rights to use the land (the “Land Use
Right”) in the PRC acquired by the Group. While the Group has
paid the full purchase consideration, the relevant government
authorities have not granted formal title to the Land Use Right to
the Group. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
absence of formal title to the Land Use Right does not impair the
value of the relevant properties to the Group. The directors of the
Company also believe that formal title to the Land use right will be
granted to the Group in due course.

DEPOSITS PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The deposits were paid by the Group in connection with the
acquisition of property, plant and equipment for production
facilities in the PRC. Additional amounts committed are shown as
capital commitments in note 31.

INVENTORIES

16.

17.

Mis: %% E 418,335,000t 2 BT # B & MR
Do ARARAEERNIBEFE U - 5 A
RERTH BRI o B E P 34 ©

BNEERBEDANEREZ L IER
R 2 F HASOGF # 8K -

ZESBREASEMRMKBENTE LI
ERE(LibERE) BEAKHE
EXRANUBRE  EBBBRTE
FImAmAEERR L T uEMAEZE
AXB - ARAEERR WARME
T REZ EXERTEEHAL
BEBYELRBME - ARAEFIN
BE AKESREERRER L
R EX M -

WEYME BERZHERZ
S
REES 2312 T WU R R
B2 W% BUE R R P R R
o 5N U L I 231 A R
-

Raw materials B M
Work-in-progress EH M
Finished goods Bk W

# i
2009 2008

=t L YN —TT)\F

HK$°000 HK$000

EETT AT IT

7,712

17,175

13,961

38,848
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18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 18. FEWE 5 R 7k & H fih FE W =R IE
PREPAYMENTS LR TE R IE
2009 2008
—ETNF eyiS
HK$°000 HK$'000
EETR BT T
Trade receivables U E Z R 44,049
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts W REREE —
44,049
Other receivables E i & W R IE
Deposits paid B2 3,973
Others Hib 2,184
6,157
Prepayments TE R 875
47,304 51,081
The Group allows a credit period of 30 to 90 days to its trade AKESTHESEF30HE0EH
customers. The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables EEH - RBRESHERBREBEEZRRS
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting EEZD| 7 EWE 5 IR iR 2 17 10
period: L
2009 2008
by B T )\ F
HK$'000 HK$’'000
EETR BT T
0 to 30 days 0H Z30H 12,179 15,821
31 to 60 days 31H £60H 12,613 15,999
61 to 90 days 61H ZE90H 9,818 6,070
91 to 120 days 91H%120H 2,684 4,036
Over 120 days Hid1208 1,520 2,123
44,049
Before accepting any new customer, the Group will understand the EEMHFEFP A AEEKTRE
potential customer’s credit quality and defines its credit limits. HEEFZEEERABRTHERARE -
Credit sales are made to customers with an appropriate credit ARBERMABREERTHENETFE
history. Credit limits attributed to customers are reviewed regularly. HERBEE - ETEFNERARERE
The directors of the Company considered that trade receivables at ARREEFRA REMAEEFPBE
the end of both reporting periods which are neither past due nor BEFRRAEBBEZRN  RBEHL
impaired are of good credit quality based on the past repayment REHRITERECERESERA
pattern of corresponding customers and subsequent settlement. BRIFZIEEEER-
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18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

PREPAYME NTS (continued)

Included in the Group's trade receivable balance are debtors with
an aggregate carrying amount of HK$14,453,000 (2008:
HK$12,874,000) which are past due at the reporting date for
which an impairment loss has not been recognised. The Group

does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired

8. MEWEE 5 AR ™k &% H i FE WL "R IE

LA R T8 R IE )

RREBH AEBNEWRE SHER
HRBEZ2AXEBEEEDEABEK
14,453,000 (= T & N\ F: 8 &
12,874,0007T) WY FE W R IE 2 0 B - 1B
SEWRBRBEEE KNEBHZ
ERBETIFBEEMERY -

EEMER T AR EZ EKE SRR
2 8RR

2009 2008

ooy Bl T )\ F

HK$°000 HK$'000

EETR BT T

31 to 60 days 31H £60H 3,157
61 to 90 days 61H Z90H 3,558
91 to 120 days 91H =120H 4,036
Over 120 days HiE120H 2,123
Total 45t 12,874

The directors of the Company consider trade receivables which are

past due but not impaired are of good credit quality. Substantial

settlements were received subsequent to the end of the reporting

period.

Trade and other receivables that are denominated in currencies

other than the functional currencies of the relevant group entities

are set out below:

ARREBEZERA SEHERT UM
BzRKESERAEBERIFZERE
= o NIEMREEWEKE D R -

TXEHINAEBEEERZDEER
Moz BEINEZREESRALE
1t FE W R

MNT RMB Us$ Euro

BEEER AR =P 5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
AT AETIT BT BB T

As at 31st December, 2009

1,516 — 724 2,107

As at 31st December, 2008

— 302 2,444 411
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19. INVESTMENTS HELD FOR TRADING 19. HIFEEKRE
2009 2008
—ETNF
HK$°000 HK$'000
EETR BT T
Investments held for trading comprise: BIrEBEREBRE
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong REE TR IRARGE 3 207
The fair values of the above investments held for trading are FPRABEEEREZ A FEDNRER
determined based on the quoted market bid prices available on the FrFrsmis L EBEE -
Stock Exchange.
20. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 20. RITHBRRER
Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range from FITHEBIZN TOBERIE(ZT
0.03% t0 0.31% (2008: 0.05% to 1.22%) per annum. T )\ : 0.05F £1.22[8) 2 T 35 F F
EEHB o
Bank balances that are denominated in currencies other than TXHINNEREEER2EER
functional currencies of the relevant group entities are set out LASNZ E¥ETIME 2 RITAE &4 -
below:
CAD MNT RMB Us$ Yen Euro

mi E#EX  ARE E BE B
HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BETL BBTL AT EBTL EETL BETR

As at 31st December, 2009 R =TT NF

+-F=1+—H 6,295 2,424 81 3,498 — 3,961
As at 31st December, 2008 R-_ZEZNE
+ZRA=+—-8 — — 98 1,754 13 615
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21.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

ZhE+A=+—HILEE

21.

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented based

on the invoice date at the end of both reporting periods:

B 755 R 2R B =

(continued #8)

BB SRR R thREARIE

IR FERT R

RREREHRREBEZAHREE

2 ENEZRFIRED

2009
“ETRE
HK$'000
Tt

Trade payables ERE SRR
0 to 30 days OH #=30H
31 to 60 days 31H 260H
61 to 90 days 61HZ90H
91 to 120 days 91H Z120H
Over 120 days BiB1208
Other payables H fth fE I 3B
Accruals & E‘MQITA
Other payables H fth & < TR IR
Deposits received EWET &

12,691
6,454
2,205

21,350

28,371

The average credit period on purchase of goods is 60 days. The

Group has financial risk management policies in place to ensure

that all payables are settled within the credit timeframe.

Trade and other payables that are denominated in currencies other

than the functional currencies of the relevant group entities are set

IR CENE

2008

—EENF

HK$'000

BT T

10,456
872
352

17
289
11,986

12,354
12,094

4,115
28,563
40,549

BEEmMMNFHEREHRE0RA - K&

® 2 E MR
RETE A3

P B IR BR - AR AT
AERNEEREABE -

TXHINEEEEERZYEEY
J«AM\ZE%?'J%ZEHE%EE 7PSEE

out below: & < SR T
MNT RMB us$ Euro
BEER AR ER Ex T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT ABTRT ABTRT BAETT
As at 31st December, 2009 R-_ZEZHEFE+_A=+—H 1,109 163 874 1,101
As at 31st December, 2008 R-ZEENF+_A=+—H — — 807 771
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(continued #8)

22. UNSECURED BANK LOANS WHOLLY REPAYABLE  22. Bt —E R EE{EE 2 MK
WITHIN ONE YEAR MITER
The unsecured bank loans comprise: EIMIFRITERBTE
Carrying amount
fREE
2009 2008
=Ly T\ F
HK$°000 HK$'000
EETR BT T
Floating-rate borrowings: 2B AE fa
Hong Kong Inter-bank Offer Rate (“HIBOR") + E&ERITRIEFRE ([BFHBRTHE
0.45%" %%FF,%\J) +0.45/E" 16,000
(1) Repayable at the end of each interest period. Amount repaid may be redrawn ) AEREFEHAEE - SRR 7B B R
immediately. The intervals of each interest period vary from one to three months. &M SR ZHBHENTF—@AZ=@A -

The average effective interest rate of the Group’s unsecured bank
loans is 0.6% (2008: 3.2%) per annum.

The unsecured bank loan that is denominated in a currency other
than functional currency of the relevant group entity is set out
below:

ANEBzBEBRITERZER TS
FREABOGE(ZEZENF 1 32) -
TXHIABEEBERENEES
INZ B E B EHE 2 B IRIRTT

e LA
B

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T

As at 31st December, 2009

As at 31st December, 2008

23. CONVERTIBLE NOTE

The Company issued a 2% unsecured convertible note to CNNC
Overseas, with principal amount of US$13,702,000 on 5th
November, 2008. The fixed note interest of US$68,512 will be
settled quarterly. The convertible note entitles the holders to
convert it, in whole or in part of the principal amount, into ordinary
shares of the Company at any time prior to seven business days
at the
conversion price of US$0.23 per share, subject to anti-dilutive

preceding the maturity date on 4th November, 2011,
adjustments. If the convertible note has not been converted, it will

be redeemed at par on 4th November, 2011.

The effective interest rate of the liability components of the
convertible note is 11.58%.

EE

— = =

E’\

NE+—ARB  AAQTFMA
FROZ 8 SN B 1T AN & BE13,702, ooo%ﬁ

MXEXFIEBREE -BER

6851 2K T EFFEE - E&ﬁ&%%
ERRT ARREEFAATRZ
Z-—F+—-AMOBIHBEALEE
% B LA AT (E {7 B [ 12 2 Bk B 8 1R0.23

ENBASBEEHRLFOERSAR
B2 EBB - WAl R RBEARTIAL
B AR T ——Ft+t - ANAE

EETAEMD -

MR EEEEINHCERNEXA
11.58F o
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23. TREERE @
AREEEAELIODRAFE ZEE)

23. CONVERTIBLE NOTE (continued)

The movement of the liability component of the convertible note

for the year is set out as below: LU
2009 2008
—ET AT s
HK$'000 HK$’000
EETR BT T
As at 1st January ®n—H—H —
Issue during the year RERNET 81,805
Interest charge FEZH 1,479
Interest paid 2 AT F & —
As at 31st December N+—-_A=+—H 90,279 83,284

TRREEBABORAEE 22

The movement of the equity component of the convertible note for

the year is set out as below: PR N
2009 2008
“ETHF N
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETR BT T
As at 1st January n—HA—H —
Issue during the year RERNEIT 24,395
As at 31st December N+—-_A=+—H 24,395
24. DEFERRED TAX 24, BEHIE
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets EHRAZFTERENEERREEIN
recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior ERBEATRAEFEZESHNAT :
years:
Accelerated
tax Convertible
depreciation Tax losses note Total
hniE
RIERE BIERBE TRERER &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
& T ST T BT T ST T
At 1st January, 2008 RZZEZENF
—H—H 2,662 (1,704) — 958
(Credited) charged to profit R 18z (5t A)
or loss B (2,510) 1,607 — (903)
Charged to equity R &= AR — — 4,025 4,025
Effect of change intaxrate iR & &) 2 2 & (152) 97 — (55)
At 31st December, 2008 N-EZE)N\E
+ZA=+—8 — — 4,025 4,025
Credited to profit or loss RIERET A — — (1,398) (1,398)
At 31st December, 2009 RZZEZNF
+=—A=+—H — — 2,627 2,627
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24. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 24, BEBIIE )

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused tax
losses of approximately HK$60,179,000 (2008: HK$8,054,000)
available for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of the tax losses of HK$60,179,000
(2008: HK$8,054,000) due to the unpredictability of future profits
streams. Unrecognised tax losses of HK$4,407,000 (2008:
HK$3,948,000) will gradually expire from 2010 to 2014 (2008:
from 2009 to 2013). The remainings may be carried forward
indefinitely.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had other deductible
temporary differences of approximately HK$7,337,000 (2008:
HK$7,337,000). No deferred tax asset had been recognised in
relation to such deductible temporary difference as it is not
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries
from 1st January, 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not been
provided for in the consolidated financial statements in respect of
temporary differences attributable to accumulated profits of the
PRC subsidiaries amounting to HK$1,296,000 (2008: HK$978,000)
as the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

RMERL  NEBORDATBE
18 #4975 60,179,000 (ZZEZ )\ F ¢
7 #8,054,0007T) - A AR A& A
Flo A BETER B & FI KR - i
I f% gt &R T B T S 18 8 60,179,000
TL(ZZZT)\F B #8,054,0007T) i
RELEHIEEE - AERB K EEE
#4,407,000c (= & T )\ F: 8 &
3,948,000) B —E—ZTFE-F
—WF(ZEENF BHZZEENFE
ZE—=F)RRBE - BTG E
B ER EA A -

RBEBRER AEEBZAINBRERKE
B4 B 7,337,000 (ZEZE)N\F 8
#£7,337,0007T) - B B & BIS JER TR
St ) DA 85 AT H0ORL T RRE = R A A] B
TR R BERZEATNBRERERE
HRECEMIBEE -

BEPECEMGEHRERE BZF
ENF-—A—BAR BRRFEK
JB A B B E AT ER 2 % A i Bk 2 B
BHURTENH - AEWEB AR Z Eit
i Al FEAG 2 8 I = 58 R 8 151,296,000
B ( ZZTZ/\4F 978,000 70) © A&
EETARZERBEREATHERE
TER B E REARASE TS & [
TREENR BEBREREES
AJRET R Al R AR KEE -
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25. SHARE CAPITAL 25. &
Number of ordinary shares Amount
LiEkeE k4]

Ordinary shares of FREES0.01
HK$0.01 each TCHY AR
Authorised: EE
At 1st January and ®n—H—H
31st December k+=AH
=+—H 1,000,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRER
At 1st January w—H—H 379,168,308
Issue of new shares
(note) BT R R (M 5E) 50,000,000
At 31st December Rt+=-—A=+—H 429,168,308

Note: ~ On 4th June, 2008, a conditional subscription agreement was entered into between
the Company and CNNC Overseas, the substantial shareholder of the Company, to
subscribe for 159,168,308 new shares of HK$0.01 each in the Company at a price
of HK$1.77 per share. The transaction was completed on 5th November, 2008.

Pursuant to a placing agreement dated 8th July, 2009, an
aggregate of 50,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the
Company were placed by CNNC Overseas to independent investors
at the price of HK$8.78 per share (the “Placing”). On completion
of the Placing, CNNC Overseas subscribed for an aggregate of
50,000,000 new shares in the Company at the price of HK$8.78
per share so as to raise further working capital for the Company
and broaden its capital base. These shares rank pari passu with the
then existing shares in all respects. The net proceeds from the
subscription of approximately HK$427 million were used for the
Group's future business developments and general working capital.

2009 2008

b2 XN —TT)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BB T AT T

1,000,000,000 b 10,000
220,000,000 . 2,200

159,168,308 1,592

379,168,308

Mz RZZZNFANANAB AQAEEFERES
ZEINET LA G RBE IR E - UERBB1.77T
K0 {8 1% 52 88 78 A 71159,168,3080% & A% [ 18 7 #
00ITTH ¥R - ZERFER T NF+—
ARAZEMK -

BEZZEZENFLANRLHEE
Wi RBINETRRG B K878
TTHER RABYRRESEHEAR
7]50,000,0000% & #%20.017% 7T /9 & 38 i
(& - TRESE  RZENE
SRR HABESTISTHERREA &
7K 2 550,000,000 #7 i 17 - #5 DA —
THEARAEREELESRIBERER
MER ZERCEERBEFERNHAE
EFEABRSHA - REAEBRIE
H BB 4 A& 75 #5427,000,0007T ¢ #E 1 A
SERREBBER—REBEESZ
)EH °
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26.

RESERVES

The non-distributable reserve represents the aggregate amount of
the share premium of the subsidiaries as at the time of a group
reorganisation effected on 13th December, 2002 (the “Group
Reorganisation”).

The merger reserve represents the difference between the
aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the subsidiaries
and the nominal amount of the Company’s shares issued in
exchange thereof pursuant to the Group Reorganisation.

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC,
subsidiaries established in the PRC (the “PRC subsidiaries”) are
required to maintain a general reserve fund which is non-
distributable. Appropriations to this reserve fund are made out of
profit for the year of the PRC subsidiaries’ PRC statutory financial
statements which are prepared in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in the PRC. The amount and allocation
basis are decided by the board of directors of the PRC subsidiaries
annually and is not less than 10% of the profit for the year of the
PRC subsidiaries for that year. The general reserve fund can be used
for expanding the capital base of the PRC subsidiaries by means of
capitalisation issue.

26.

it

AN R#EHEER-_ET _F+_HA
+ZBETEEEH(EEEMHD B
B AR aEATE-

EHFERERRARESEEEERENEBA
B AEEAEER R IREE
BAMRBETERNEERZEZRE -

REFBEEBIZERRIRE  &£F
B B A m (T B8 R])
BRI -—RFEES MEEREE
I AAIDIK - ZHEHES RN B
REMEBARERTEAR SR
FImE P BUEE M MR ZFRER
DEBEE D EELERTEME QA
LEEREBFEE  ERBETAD
REAEBEKBRRRNZEEZF AL
0% - —RFEESATRARBEER
LBETRATEMBARZERNER -
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27. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES/ACQUISITION OF 27. INEBMIB AT WEMEBAS
ADDITIONAL INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES HEZS
In the current year, the Group acquired approximately 69.5% of the REE AEBRBIE=FKER
issued share capital of Western Prospector from independent third BA R B BEITRA469.5% B (E
parties for an aggregate consideration of approximately #7143,589,0007% 7T ° FIEB 1~ Al A& —
HK$143,589,000. Western Prospector was a company incorporated RMmEXRFEMEZZ AT ERHR
in Canada with its shares listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange SMEBERIBIER G LT -
Venture Exchange. This acquisition has been accounted for as b T8 B DA U B R4 6 B RS N P Ef
acquisition of a jointly controlled entity and the assets and the NAIEBEMEERBBAAEAR I
associated liabilities of the Western Prospector Group. The BEPRE0 N B EE B2 MR B 7S UL EE
acquisition of Western Prospector Group is not considered as a ERASAREENERERAEE
business acquisition as the activities of the Western Prospector SHESTEY R\ & RN
Group are the holding of exploration licenses in radioactive minerals RIEHEENKRE ZWEEIR
in Mongolia and investment in jointly controlled entity. The TERAEFERAZTABETK
acquisition has been completed on 29th June, 2009.
The assets and the associated liabilities acquired, including the THPNECEERBBEEREREB
jointly controlled entity (see note 14), in the transaction are as FHEAEZESER(EMF14)) 0T :
follows:
HK$'000
BT T
Property, plant and equipment ME - WE MR E 11,841
Exploration and evaluation assets R R EEE 154,633
Interest in jointly controlled entity RARZESIEEHOZERE 30,460
Other receivables and prepayments H 4th FE W FR0E N TR A 8 3,125
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRE S 25,911
Other payables and accruals H b e E R ESTRR (1,418)
224,552
Minority interests LERR R (63,071)
Net assets acquired kg 2 EEFE 161,481
Consideration satisfied by: LATH AR A
Cash R4 143,589
Transaction costs incurred EEZRSGHA 17,892
161,481
Net cash outflow arising from acquisition: WEEEACRESREFE
Cash consideration paid EfzBEERE (143,589)
Transaction costs paid B 2R GEAR (17,892)
Bank balances and cash acquired Friiig 2 RITHEBR RIR S 28,982
(132,499)
Following the completion of the above acquisition and in August BEE LMW ETKE RZZEZNEF

2009, the Group acquired the remaining 30.5% equity interest in
Western Prospector, at a cash consideration of Canadian dollar
("CAD") 9,357,755 (equivalent to approximately HK$63,071,000.
Western Prospector then became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and its shares were delisted from the Toronto Stock

Exchange Venture Exchange on 18th August, 2009.

A z!S%lM&E%@ﬁB’ATZé%T
30.5% R # - 3 & K8 /9,357,755 7T
(M 7w H (48 & % % % 63,071,000
TL) o FAEB R B EK ARNAF 22 EW
BAR MEBROGR-_ZZZFTNLFNA
FTNEESZHREBFLFRZIMEAER S
Fir B h& o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Annual Report 2009

FNFE R

,Zvéf\ é\ E]f 7_% 3:;?& ig Bﬁ Ef (continued #5)

For the year ended 31st December, 2009 HEZ_—_ZTZNF+ A=+ —-HILFZE

27.

28.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES/ACQUISITION OF
ADDITIONAL INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Western Prospector Group incurred a loss of approximately HK$7.8
million between the date of acquisition and the end of the
reporting period.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company'’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted
for a period of ten years commencing 11th December, 2002
pursuant to a written resolution of all shareholders passed on 11th
December, 2002 for the primary purpose of providing incentives or
rewards to directors of the Company and eligible employees of the
Group. Under the Scheme, the Company may grant options to
eligible employees and directors of the Company and its
subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the Company. Additionally,
the Company may, from time to time, grant share options to
outside eligible advisors and consultants to the Company and its
subsidiaries at the discretion of its board of directors.

The number of shares which may be issued under the Scheme is
subject to the following limits:

(i) the maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Scheme and any other share
option scheme of the Company must not in aggregate
exceed 30% of the total number of issued shares of the
Company from time to time;

(i) without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders, the
total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme and any other share option
scheme is not permitted to exceed 22,000,000 shares,
representing 10% of the issued share capital of the Company
at 6th January, 2003; and

(i) the number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted to any individual in any one year is not permitted to
exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company as at
the date of such grant.

27.

28.

KB EBAT HEEMEBAS
e

AU A RS BRI A A
A) & B = A B 18 4078 %7,800,0007T °

R Bz HE T 2

BE2EREN_ZET_F+_A4
+—HBANEmMARFER AR AR
MEEN T B ([ZETE)) A2 ZT

“HE+-At+—BRARHTF XE
BEN—RIERYARREZERAEESA
BitE S SR IR - RIZAATE]
ARRAF A ERETARA REN
BRrAlaEBEENRES URABX
RERD W REFRZBBER
EARAATCKEHBERET AR
AINEKBARNINAEERBER K
kR B e

REBEZHE A FHERITZROEERT
S FRBR

() WRFBEZTERARDEEMEAM
ERERETEREERERR
WRIEMEE LR &HTER
BARATREETRM B
230% ;

iy HERESEARARBRESLEIE
AT - ARAR 52 5T &) I AT () H b B Ak
BB EREERES R Z
BRHm@Bas - & TBBA
22,000,000% - HHE R T T =
F—RAANBARRBHITRA
Z210% &

(i) WEM—-FRAEERERMAL
BRHBRESRZBRHEE T
FHEEARARKEAHNE &
TRAZ1% -
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28.

29.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable upon acceptance of
the grant of the option. The exercise price is determined by the
directors of the Company and will be at least the higher of (i) the
average of the closing prices of the ordinary shares of the Company
for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of the
grant; (i) the closing price of the ordinary shares of the Company
on the date of the grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the ordinary
shares of the Company.

Any options granted under the Scheme must be exercised during
such option period as may be determined and notified by the
directors of the Company, which shall not exceed 10 years from
the date of acceptance of the option.

No options have been granted under the Scheme since its
adoption.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure it will be able to continue
as a going concern while maximising the return to shareholders
through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes
unsecured bank loan wholly repayable within one year and
convertible note, and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising share capital, share premium, investments
revaluation reserve, non-distributable reserve, merger reserve,
general reserve fund, convertible note equity reserve, translation
reserve and accumulated profits as disclosed in the consolidated
financial statements.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure annually.
As part of this review, the directors of the Company assess the
annual budget prepared by management of the Company. Based
on the proposed annual budget, the directors of the Company
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class
of capital. The directors of the Company also balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share
issues of the Company as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt.

28.

29.

MRl
REMBFLERER B NEEIT
SHEARE-TEEHARAESE
E EBRIABERTIESE ()X
NEEBRRRBEEZERL BB RER
SBZ2FHWTE: (AR AEBRK
RELBHBHZWHE: RG)ARARQ F
LBl E -

BIEZAE L 2 ABREARK
RNAIEEETERAM 2B REBRERN
T BEEBETEREERERERE
49 E B AB104F ©

B st Bl AR I EARIR AL AT
BB -

BEXEREE

AEEEREARURRENSEL
% RAEEBELESRESESBE
RECFRERS -

AEEZEARBREER  BRA
R—FEREHER 7 BERRITER
ABRRRBERARRER AREEDR
(BREEMBRRABE 2B - B
MaE REE[MEHEE T DK
w-EHER REGES TR
BRERAEE EXFHERRTR
)

ARREZBFERNEARB-ER
HEHZ &2 ARBDEFHAR
AEREERAECFEREETMG -
REZZFERE ARAEFZE
BRARAREZBEEAERORER -
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30. £MTH
(a) €EMIRZEA

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(a) Categories of financial instruments

(b)

2009 2008
“EThE Y
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BETR BT T
Financial assets EREE
Fair value through profit or loss held for BAFEFTFABEN
trading BIELE 322 207
Loans and receivables (including cash and B 5k K E R IE
cash equivalents) (BERESRESZEY) 652,758 450,356
Financial liabilities SHaE
Amortised cost 5k AN

Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and
other receivables, investments held for trading, bank balances
and cash, trade and other payables, unsecured bank loans
wholly repayable within one year and convertible note.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. Management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Credit risk

The Group's principal financial assets include trade and other
receivables and cash and cash equivalents. The Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the
counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations as at 31st
December, 2009 in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position. In
order to minimise the credit risk, management of the Group
has delegated a team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. The Group only extends credit to customers based
upon careful evaluation of the customers’ financial conditions
and credit history.

(b) MBEBEREHERBE

AEBsITESRTABERE
U & 5 B R B EL At FE WORIR
FEENRE R|RITEHRLES
FE B 5 MR 5K S Ho A A5 FRO0R
AR —FABEEER 2 EBEA
RITERRARBRRERE -ZE2
MTAZFERBRAMERE-
TXHINZFERTANRBEL
R RiFERR2ERR - BEE
EERETEBER  ARRE
Ko b o B MR BUE B HE 1 o

15 & &
AEBEZTECHEERRERE
W B 5 B R I E Al W R IR A
EBReFREFEYW R_TFT
NE+-_A=+—HB M54
TAREBITEEME  BIAEER
SR CERSREEMEK
EzEaEERBRARGE Y
BARRAKINEZZEEER®@
B RBEEERR NEBE
BEERYIBMLEEEEEE
RE- - EEM IR EMEEZ
B AREREREIRE TS B A
HEL AEBEXREEAGE
FHBAREBEEERRE -
TREFREHEER-
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30. &I H®
(b) BABEMBEEBERBR®

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Credit risk (continued)

In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of
each individual receivable at the end of the reporting period
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are recognised for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s exposure to bad debts
and concentration risk is minimal.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 57% of the
total trade receivables as at 31st December, 2009 (2008:
50%) was due from the Group's five largest customers.
Those five largest customers are reputable electrical appliance
company, automotive traders and agents with long business
history with the Group. Management performs periodic
evaluations and customer visits to ensure the Group's
exposure to bad debts is not significant. The historical
experience in the collection of trade receivables from the five
largest customers falls within the expectation of the directors.

Credit risk on bank balances is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies or with good reputation.

Market risk

(i) Foreign currency risk management
While most of the Group’s operations are transacted in
the functional currencies of the respective group
entities, the Group undertakes certain transactions
denominated in foreign currencies. The Group currently
has not formulated any hedging policies against its
exposure to currency risk. Yet, the Group still manages
its foreign currency risk by closely monitoring the
movement of the foreign currency rate.

15 EE B =)

AN REBR R ERREBEHRS
TE B Bl e Y SR IE AT U [B] 5 58 - 1@
REJRATAT KB CEEEREH
WEBE Btms  AoaE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

(i)

tRa Bt % ¥ =~ B 7T (continued #)
For the year ended 31st December, 2009 HEZ_—_ZTZNF+ A=+ —-HILFZE

30. &I H®
(b) MEEMBEEHERBER®

Market risk (continued) iy 4% B B ()
Foreign currency risk management (continued) () SR g EEE ()
The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary assets REEBUIIEFBE2EE
and monetary liabilities denominated in foreign BENEEBENMER
currencies at the end of both reporting periods are as HHRZEEERT
follows:
HKD CAD MNT RMB uss$ Yen Euro
BT i ERER AR® ET BE EX 5T
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
BT ABTr BETr BETRT ABTr BETT BETT
As at 31st December, A —=—ZFZ h4F
2009 +=A=+-~
Assets BE — 6,295 3,940 81 4,222 — 6,068
Liabilities afE 16,000 — 1,109 163 874 — 1,101
As at 31st December, A =L E )\ F
2008 +=-A=+—~
Assets BE — — — 400 4,198 13 1,026
Liabilities & 1 16,000 — — — 807 — 771

Management monitors foreign exchange exposure as
stated above and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a
5% (2008: 5%) increase and decrease in US$ against
the relevant foreign currencies. 5% (2008: 5%) is the
sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency
risk internally to key management personnel and
represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates.
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currencies denominated monetary items at the
end of the reporting period and adjusted for a 5%
(2008: 5%) change in foreign currency rates. A positive
number below indicates a decrease in loss where US$
weakens 5% (2008: 5%) against the relevant
currencies. For a 5% (2008: 5%) strengthening of US$
against the relevant currencies, there would be an
equal and opposite impact on loss. Since HK$ is
pegged to US$, relevant foreign currency risk is
minimal and excluded from the calculation below.

EEEEER LM IMNER
o WK THEREZ B Y
BERINER R

BRERE D
TRFLAEEHETHL

R INEE FE RS % (T F
J\E 5% ) 2 BRKE © 5%
—ETNF:5%)BAE
ERBEmEEEBEASE
WwONE R FTARBRE
hE-IREEEYHINE
EXA Rz EE
ZHfE - BRERESNER
RS B4R M R B EA LA
SNESIEzEMIER B
[EEL5% (ZTTN\F :5%)
BEELAR - EBIEE
THABEE SR ES% (=
TT)\F:5%)F HE
BFRL - EETHERH
EBHAER (ZETNF
5%) - A REE BB A R
ERROTE -BREE
EETTHES WEBEER
[ R S N S )
TEIELER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 42 & 871 7% TR 2% MY 3T (continued )

For the year ended 31st December, 2009 &

E-TEAEF AT —ALEE

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

30. &I H®

(b) BBEMBEEBERBR®

Market risk (continued) 5 B B ()
(i)  Foreign currency risk management (continued) () IR e AE ()
Sensitivity analysis (continued) RS 2T ()
CAD MNT RMB Yen Euro
mw BERER ARE H BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT BT BT BB TR
2009 —EENF
Decrease in loss for the year & N &1 300 135 (4) — 237
2008 —ETNF
Decrease in loss for the year 4 4 £5 18 ) — — 19 1 12

(i) Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to changes in interest rates is
mainly attributable to its bank balances, unsecured
bank loans and convertible note. Bank balances and
unsecured bank loans at variable rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest-rate risk. Details of the
Group's bank balances and unsecured bank loans are
disclosed in notes 20 and 22 respectively.

The Group currently does not have an interest rate
hedging policy. However, management monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.

The Group does not expose to significant cash flow
interest-rate risk on financial instruments as the
interest of the Group's financial liabilities and
fluctuation in interest rate are insignificant. Also, the
directors of the Company consider those interest
bearing bank deposits are within short maturity period
and the effect on fluctuation in interest rate is
insignificant.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by management to finance the Group's operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.
Management monitors the utilisation of borrowings.

The following tables detail Group’s contractual maturity for
its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the agreed
repayment terms. The tables have been drawn up based on
the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay.
The tables include both interest and principal cash flows. To
the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curve at
the end of the reporting period.

(i) FE @z
AEFZFEREEEK
D H R 1T 45 6 - K I
RITEREABRRERS
B2 ERF B 2R
THRERERFRTER
BEYAEEERHBE SR
EFEER - NEEET
LR EEBRITE R
159 R MI sF20 K2 225 58

7 o (8 39 % 3 4% {F f) Fi| &
YR E e AT B R E
BERFEARINES
B U B AR R AR -

HRAEEEERE EHF
BRAMERNEEMAR
BOBRASEYERYHE@E
HBEABRREMNERE
o tsh RRABEER
R EZEFBRROTERDD
EREHAE S BN ERK
BRFEIFREME-

B & £ hE
REBRBESRMRE  AEE
SEENMMFAS MRS EE
MEREEERRTRZKF
NBENASEZEEMTES
LEBERERERBIZE-E
EESEBYRAEEZRR -

TERFNAEEHFETESHRE
BEREHEERGR A OB
RIBEN - ZERBIREANEE
RAKBREETMAGB LR
FEEHzeMEBEERURAS
MERH - ZERBEENER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 47 & Bl 75 3% 2% BT 5T (continued )
For the year ended 31st December, 2009 HEZ_—_ZTZNF+ A=+ —-HILFZE

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 30 £ TH®
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) BMEEMGEEHERBE®
(continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) BB ERE )
Weighted Total Total
average 6110 365 undiscounted carrying
interestrate  0to30days 31to 60 days days 1-5 years cash flows amount
KR
g aRg
FHHE  0FNE  NF60R  61F365H 155% wE  RESE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETL  RRTT  BRTn RETn BETR BETL  AETR

As at 31st December, 2009 R-EELE

+-AZt-H
Trade and other payables ERESERR
HtEARE 1,722 12,449 12,449
Unsecured bank loans wholly ER-FREHER
repayable within one year LERRBIER ! 16,096 - - 16,096 16,000
Convertible note THREE i - 1,593 107,992 110,116 90,279

892 1,959 107,992 138,661 118,728

As at 315t December, 2008 R-BBAE

+ZA=+-H
Trade and other payables EREHERR
Eft R A - 14,881 8388 9% - 23364 23364
Unsecured bank loans wholly BR-FREZEER
repayable within one year JEERBIER 32 16,325 — — — 16,325 16,000
Convertible note HRREE 20 — 531 1,593 110,448 112,572 83,284
31,206 8919 1,688 110,448 152,261 122,648

The amounts included above for variable interest rate L EEEEMAENTE

instruments for financial liabilities are subject to change if FMETHE - #WZEMEERRE

changes in variable interest rates differ to those estimates of HRET 2 bt fhst FIEER
interest rates determined at the end of the reporting period. ZH OFEMEXTABFREHEI
(c) Fair value () AFE

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are EHmEEREREEZLATE

determined as follows: EEMAT:

e the fair value of financial assets with standard terms . B AR ERR R RN
and conditions and traded on active liquid markets are /EE&/AL@J MEEEZSH
determined with reference to quoted market bid BE Tﬁéﬁ%ﬁﬁiﬁ M5 E
prices; and BEEBEEAFE &

. the fair value of other financial assets and financial . HthemEERSRAR
liabilities are determined in accordance with generally ZARFETIABRRE ¢ ﬁ
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash EPMABEEZEERAR
flow analysis. ZEBENETE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 47 & Bf 7% 38 R B #E (continued #)
For the year ended 31st December, 2009 HEZ_—_ZTZNF+ A=+ —-HILFZE

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(c) Fair value (continued)
The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate to their fair values.

The fair value measurement recognised on the consolidated
financial statements subsequent to initial recognition with
respect to the Group’s investments held for trading belongs
to level 1, being fair value derived from quoted prices

(unadjusted) in active market for identical assets or liabilities.

31. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

30. €T Hmw
() AF{E
RRAREERE RNEAVHER
%W?ﬁ%ﬁiﬁﬁk$ﬂﬁ§2ﬁmﬁé
EXcHAaERAmERE QT
BiEE

RAKREREESTREMS 1)
THAREFRA VB HRRER
ZAVEFEDNBRE —E& -
BRI EEXBBENER
mEFMBERCRAR) G

Capital expenditure in respect of acquisition of

property, plant and equipment: BEARRX
Authorised but not contract for EREBRTLY
Contracted for but not provided BRI4EREE

B E - BE MR E R

B R FE
BEXkiE
2009 2008
k- 2Rl —TT)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
EETR BT T
1,167
16,833
18,000

32. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had outstanding
commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases for rented premises which fall due as
follows:

32, EEHEXRIE
RBEL  AEERERCHED %
TR HMECLEE  RTHE

1= £hH

—FR
F_FEFRF(R

Within one year

In the second to fifth year inclusive

MBI ArREEARKERER
EAPEWMT

2009 2008

il Y- — T\ F

HK$°000 HK$'000

EETR BT T

6,241

EEEMF) 11,353

17,594

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for
certain of its office premises and factory land and buildings. The
average lease term is 3 years. Rentals are fixed and no arrangements
have been entered into for contingent rental payments.

Rental expense paid by the Group during the year amounted to
HK$5,422,000 (2008: HK$4,414,000).

REHEFREAKERES THA
EMEURBE T REFEMSES -
FHMREFH/F -HEHEE - B
BRI AB SN RETLEM B

FR - AEEINZHESALAEE
5,422,000c( = & T N F: 8 &
4,414,0007T) °
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“TENEEH

?‘véf\ é ,H\Z‘f ﬁ‘% 3:::5& %% Bﬁ Ef (continued #5)

For the year ended 31st December, 2009 HEZ_—_ZTZNF+ A=+ —-HILFZE

33.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES
Effective from 1st December, 2000, the Group has participated in a

Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) for all its
eligible employees in Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme is registered
with the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Authority under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Ordinance. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in funds under
the control of an independent trustee. Under the rules of the MPF
Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at rates specified in the rules. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF Scheme is to make
the required contributions under the scheme. No forfeited
contributions are available to reduce the contribution payable in
the future years.

The Group is also required to make contributions to state-
management retirement benefit schemes operated by the PRC
government based on a certain percentage of the monthly payroll
costs of the employees of its subsidiaries in the PRC. The Group has
no other obligations under the state-management retirement
benefit schemes in the PRC other than the contribution payable.

During the year, the total amount contributed by the Group to the
relevant retirement benefit schemes are as follows:

33.

B KBRS
AEBR-_ZETETEFT+_A—HEE
HEBMBAEKEESE —HAH
MABeE((RESTE]) -8
© &8I R 1% 58 Bl M R TR @ & B HIE
Al AEeITEEREREM - BE
CETEIMEEMBUERALES - B®
TEBNES FABE BREBRES
SFEIMARA BEERERERESBAR
RAEEOLE R EEL KR
EEpRESTEEENE—BETR
RAREH 81 /E P &R 3K I 08 it
OB AR A R R F [E B B o

AEENARTEBRFEHNEE R
KeRMAE RPEMBLRA ZE
BAHKANETADL  tEHE -
AEERTERBETFENEERKS
&I 1F B RSN - 3 B AT ] Al 5K
8-

FA-ANEEE BERKEFGE R
HRBBEWT

MPF Scheme 5818 & 5t &l
State-management retirement benefit schemes B4 iRk 4 it 2l

2009 2008
2 VN —TT)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000

EETT AT IT

215

2,890

3,105
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,Zvéf\ é\ E]f i% 3:;?& ?E Bﬁ Ef (continued #5)

For the year ended 31st December, 2009 HEZ_—_ZTZNF+ A=+ —-HILFZE

34. GOVERNMENT GRANT

35.

During the year ended 31st December, 2005, the Group received a
government grant of approximately HK$8,335,000 in relation to
the land use right of a piece of land situated in the PRC acquired by
the Group during that year. The amount has been deducted from
the carrying amount of the prepaid lease payments as set out in
note 15. The amount is transferred to income in the form of
reduced amortisation charge over the term of the prepaid lease
payments. This policy has resulted in a credit to income in the
current year of HK$167,000 (2008: HK$167,000). As at 31st
December, 2009, an amount of HK$7,570,000 (2008:
HK$7,737,000) remained to be amortised.

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

() Remuneration of directors and other members of
key management
The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the year was as follows:

34.

35.

BB 2
HE-_ZTTERF+ _A=Z+—8I*F
B AEBEFERFREAMRF
— 8 30 2 + 3 (50 PR M ERER AT 4 B
© #)7518,335,0007T ° 20MIFE15FTE, -
ZEFEBECDEAENEEXREETEN
BRe-ZERERBNBEREBEZHEE
HARMERE T H 2 BB EW
Ao b BRK 8 BB #167,0000T (= F
T\ B H167,00000) 5 A K FE E
WA - RZBZENF+=ZA=+—8 "
7 #7,570,000. (Z 2 N\ F B K
7,737,0007T ) i# A # 8H o

Short-term benefits

7 A & A
BARIR AR

Post-employment benefits

ARAEANLTHSE
) EEREGFTEEEERS
Ze
FREENHEMIBEEEEX
BzMEwmT:
2009 2008
-k YRl —TT)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
EETT BT T
10,210 6,842
44 24
10,254 6,866

The remuneration of directors and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having regard to
the performance of individuals and market trends.

FHEZEeEREEREELT
BABHEBKRBERTHEBE R
BERSOHM-
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For the year ended 31st December, 2009 HEZ_—_ZTZNF+ A=+ —-HILFZE

35. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued)

0

(n

Remuneration of directors and other members of
key management (continued)

On 3rd December, 2008, Mr. Tsang Chiu Wai and Mr. Kong
Cheuk Luen Trevor, former directors and existing
shareholders of the Company, entered into new service
agreements with the Company for two years until 3rd
December, 2010. Pursuant to the agreed terms of the service
agreements, each of Mr. Tsang and Mr. Kong shall be
entitled to a fixed salary of HK$3,500,000 per annum plus
potential 15% profit bonus and 5% discretionary profit
bonus. The amount recognised during the year was
approximately HK$7,024,000 (2008: HK$4,666,000). It is
also a term of the service agreements that both Mr. Tsang
and Mr. Kong shall guarantee on United Non-Ferrous
(Overseas) Limited and its subsidiaries’ consolidated net asset
value of not less than the sum of HK$189,674,000 as at 3rd
December, 2010. Otherwise, each of Mr. Tsang and Mr.
Kong shall be liable to pay half of such shortfall to the
Group.

Transactions and balances with other state-
controlled entities in the PRC

The Group itself is part of a larger group of companies under
CNNC which is controlled by the PRC government. Apart
from the issue of a convertible note as set out in note 23 and
the related interest expenses of approximately HK$9,473,000
(2008: HK$1,479,000) to its immediate holding company,
CNNC Overseas, in which interest paid amounted to
HK$2,478,000 (2008: nil). During the year, the Group did
not conduct business with other state-controlled entities.

In addition, the Group has entered into various transactions,
including deposits placements with certain banks and
financial institutions which are state-controlled entities in its
ordinary course of business. In view of the nature of those
banking transactions, the directors of the Company are of
the opinion that separate disclosure would not be
meaningful.

Annual Report 2009

,Zvéf\ é\ ,Hﬁ 7_% 3:;?& ig Bﬁ Ef (continued #5)

35. BRAEANTHE®

0

(m

EERHMETEEHERS
Z B & )
RZFEENF+=ZA=H &ARQ
AT ESRREREGRE
EERIBEEEERKRRAE]
NHRE S REME 2
TZ-ZTF+-A=HIF - RIER
B HE IR §RERT
% & 7] ¥ 15 78 %3,500,0007T
2 B 7 F F7 IE E15% m M fEAL
Fo5% B iEm MIEA - F RN iER
7 & BH A 7,024,00000(=
=T\ 75 #4,666,0007T) ° H
F-IERBEHEEREES L
ERITIEEHERE RZE—
Z £+ — A = H  United Non-
Ferrous (Overseas) Limited Xz E B
BRralzinaEEFAEKT L
7 7 #5189,674,0000T © % Il
FERIAEEBERLIEE
T EHEE-

HpEHEMERZEFNEEZ
X5 R

REBEBAXR S ZHEHKRMFEH
FRZETEREEBRR 2D °
FN BRI FE23MH BT AR
ER - URAEEEERAAF
%08 9 49 7% #59,473,0007T
ZET )\ : A #1,479,0007T)
ZHEBANERZ(HPERFE
BB 152,478,000 (= T T )\
Fm)) N AL E IR M
BIRIEHI B REEITHT

BESh  NEE R —REBBEF
HETEBERZGER 2R
REBMEBITLZEARS B
FEFER ENZFRTIHM
B ARAEERR ZTTHE
BEETK
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36.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
On 23rd January, 2010, a directly wholly-owned subsidiary of the

Company entered into a sale and purchase agreement with CNNC
Overseas pursuant to which CNNC Overseas agreed to sell its entire
100% equity interest in Ideal Mining Limited (“Ideal Mining”) to
the wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company at a consideration of
not more than US$53,281,853 (equivalent to HK$414,000,000).
The Company will satisfy the consideration by issuing to CNNC
Overseas a convertible note with a principal amount of
US$53,281,853 (equivalent to HK$414,000,000), subject to
downward adjustment on completion. The transaction was
completed on 25th March, 2010.

The principal asset of Ideal Mining is a 37.2% equity interest in
Société des Mines d'Azelik S.A. which is the registered holder of
the mining license for a uranium mine located in the Agadez region
of the Tchirozérine department of Republic of Niger.

36.

,Zvéf\ 1/5\ E]f 7_% 3:;?& ig Bﬁ Ef (continued #5)

HEREEE
RZE-—ZTFE—-—A-_+=H —KK
RElHEZENB AR BB ZEINT
VEEWRE Bt PEREINREM
K aEl 2 E W EB A Eldeal Mining
Limited ([ Ideal Mining |) 100% &% # + £
B 8 3853,281,853E jL (IHE RN 48
#£414,000,0007T) ° 782 & #5 7 55 5K B
VA /) /R 4% 8 SN 3% 77 7N & 853,281,853
% 70 (1 & 7 4978 #414,000,0007T)
AIRBREEOFXAIARE  MARE
AATHAR - RHGR_E—FF=A
“tRHEHZK

Ideal Mining#) &= 2 & E & M Société
des Mines d " Azelik S.A.B% # #937.2%
5+ M Société des Mines d " Azelik S.A. Rl
&AL JE B B A ETchirozérine®
Agadez[@ &) i & &) [ 2R 5T A F R B &
BEA-
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37. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 37. AATIMEBASHTE
COMPANY

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at the end of both RRERREHE ARG Z2EBHE

reporting periods are as follows: NAFBEWOT
Place of
incorporation/ Proportion of nominal
establishment and Issued and fully paid value of issued/registered
Name of subsidiary operations share/registered capital capital held by the Company Principal activities
BRI B R BRTRYRRE FATRFERT/
MBASEH ZERY HRRE HMRAEES L TEEH
Directly Indirectly
HE Gk
2008 2008
—EENF —ZINE
% %
United Non-Ferrous (Overseas) Limited British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US$30,400 — Investment holding
Hong Kong
EBREES/EE  TRR040ET REER
Dongguan United Metal Products Co., Ltd. PRC Registered capital 100 Die casting and trading of
(“Dongguan United”) (note i) HK$40,000,000 metal products
REENREHRBRAF HE Al EFRHECRER
(TREEM]) () 7 40,000,0007C
Emeelt Mines LLC (note v) (FitiEv) Mongolia US$10,000 —  Mineral exploration in
Mongolia
) 10,000% 7T REERE
United Castings (Dongguan) Co., Ltd. (“United ~ PRC Registered capital 100 Die casting and trading of
Castings”) (note i) HK$18,000,000 (note ii) metal products
REMBLRHILBRAA FE A AR % %518,000,0007T ERRHECRER
(TRERE]) (i a%i) (Bt =ii)
United Metal Products (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. PRC Registered capital 100 Inactive
(“United Shanghai”) (note i) US$12,000,000 (note ii)
HEeBH@ (L) BRAR Ll % 712,000,000% 7T LEER
(TRHE Eg ) (M &) (B i)
United Metals Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,602 100 Trading of metal products
BHNEEERDA EE L RE 1,062 HELWER
United Non-Ferrous Corporation Mauritius Uss1 100 Trading of metal products
EERN 1T HELWER
Western Prospector Mongolia LLC Mongolia US$10,000 — Mineral exploration in
(note v) (Fffztv) Mongolia
EE 10,0005 70 WEERE
Notes: Bt 3
(i) Dongguan United, United Shanghai and United Castings are established in the PRC (i) F®A RS EIRFEEMNEAERERILN
as wholly foreign owned enterprises. RHNERE -
(if) As at 31st December, 2009, the capital of United Shanghai and United Castings (ii) R-TTAF+ZA=+—H RBELERRER
were paid up as to US$3,870,000 and HK$17,750,000 respectively. BHE 2 8 A B A 9 Bl 53,870,000% Tt K& & 1
17,750,0007T °
(iif) None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of the year. (iii) TEARGFEFIR - 30 8 1T BB A A B AT E I i 75
(iv) The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of the (iv) ERFAIAESFRATEVEARMERS AE
directors, principally affected the results, assets and liabilities of the Group. To give RBEZARAMBAR - EERAYHEMM
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars BARZABEANR TR
of excessive length.
(v) Emeelt Mines LLC and Western Prospector Mongolia LLC were acquired during the (v) W MY EE27F7 &K - Emeelt Mines LLC K2 Western

year as set out in note 27. Prospector Mongolia LLC J3 7 4F 7 Yz B ©
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Set out below is a financial summary of the Group for each of the five

years ended 31st December, 2009:

UTRAEEHZE _ZETNF+T A

ST-BRLERAEFERFZIUBHE

RESULTS ES
For the year ended 31st December,
EEXE+=-A=+—BLEE
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
ZETRFE ZTEREF ZTT+F ZZENF R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
AETT BB Tr A% Tr B% T AR
Revenue U 28 186,621 242,831 234,919 209,082 136,571
Profit (loss) before taxation & 5 B E A (B 18) 10,550 14,170 (4,394) (20,430) (41,655)
Income tax (expense) credit e (X)) KR (221) (754) 38 713
Profit (loss) for the year 1955 7 (5 18) 10,329 13,416 (4,356)  (19,717)
Earnings (loss) per share BRAEF (EBE)
— basic (HK cents) — EARGE) 47 6.1 (2.0) (8.1)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BENAEE
As at 31st December,
R+=-HA=+-—H
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
ZETRHE ZTERF ZTTEF ZTIENF ek
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
BETT  BABTIT  BETT  EETT BELEE
Total assets EEBE 211,664 256,606 240,890 613,513 994,918
Total liabilities BEes (36,310) (63,519) (51,216) (143,873)
Equity attributable to owners KA T B A
of the Company FE (b #E 25 175,354 193,087 189,674 469,640
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